@WCorp,

’
TR

Annual Report 2002

03055224

SROCESSED |

T 4pR 14 2003

. THOMSON
FINANGIAL

The Value

of Execution



|
[
| o Corp. (NYSE: €DI) is @ professional services and eutseurcing cempany with
cere eperations in engineering, information tedhnelogy and staffing.

CDI helps customers in targeted wvertical markets
achieve a faster and higher return on capital invest-
ment by providing high-value engineering and
information technology solutions and specialized
talent on demand. Our sclutions provide them with
the speed, skill and scale they need to focus more
sharply on their core competencies, accelerate
change and achieve profitable growth.
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Dear Shareholder:

A year ago, we articulated our plan for a funda-
mental restructuring of CDI and outlined the
results we expected to achieve through those
actions. We have executed our plan with discipline
and precision, and the result is exactly what we
foreshadowed on the cover of last year's annual
report: a simpler, more profitable company focused
on sustainable growth. Today, we are in a solid
position to grow profitably and maximize share-
holder value—with or without favorable economic
conditions.

There has been a plethora of restructuring activity
among Fortune 1000 companies over the past 18
months, much of it cost-cutting in response to the
persistent gloom hovering over the giobal business
community. In restructuring CDI, however, our aim
was to do more than simply cut costs in the short
term. We recognized the need to improve our busi-
ness model and pare our cost structure back to a
rational level, a level that would enable us to func-
tion efficiently while strengthening our competitive
posture in the marketplace.

Despite the inevitable uncertainty that
accompanies chenge on a farge scale,
our employees rose to the occasion and
delivered on every major promise we
made to our shareholders a year ago.

Roger H. Ballou

; L President and CEQ

Along with streamlining our infrastructure, we out-
lined a growth strategy that focused on providing
specialized, high-value solutions to customers in
the most promising vertical markets. We shed
accounts and lines of business that failed to meas-
ure up to our new financial criteria and began to
exercise greater discipline and selectivity in pursu-
ing new business that would move CDI up the
“value chain” in the eyes of our customers and
shareholders.

It was an ambiticus agenda for a 12-month period,
but we felt very strongly that we needed to take
aggressive action to restore both CDI's profitability
and the confidence of our shareholders. Despite
the inevitable uncertainty that accompanies
change on a large scale, our employees rose to the
occasion and delivered on every major promise we
made to our shareholders a year ago.



Here is our “report card” for the year 2002:

o We have reduced CDI's break-even level from
approxirnately $1.4 billion (December 2001) to
$850 million (as of December 2002). Our goal
was to reduce brezk-even to under $1 billion.

o We effectively eliminated debt and ended 2002
with approximately $94 million in cash and
highly liquid short-term investments on the
balance sheet.

o By the end of 2002, as compared with the first
quarter of 2001, we reduced our overall indirect
expense run rate by more than $100 million.

o We increased our direct margin by 90 basis
points year over year to 26.1 percent, in line
with our goal.

o Qur return on revenue improved 210 basis
points to 2.4 percent on pre-tax profits (before
charges).

o Qur annualized return on assets increased by
860 basis points, to 10.1 percent. Our target for
ROA is to achieve a pre-tax return of 20 percent
or greater in 2004.

CDI has been viewed as a staffing
company, but with our restructuring
and paring of business lines, we now
operate primarily as a professional
services and outsourcing company.
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Business Segment Discussion

CDi has been viewed as a staffing company, but
with our restructuring and paring of business lines,
we now operate primarily as a professional service
and outsourcing company. CDI's new mission state-
ment defines how our recrganized company now
delivers value to customers and shareholders:

CDI helps customers in targeted vertical markets
achieve a faster and higher return on capital invest-
ment by providing high-value engineering and
information technology sclutions and specialized
talent on demand. Our solutions provide them with
the speed, skill and scale they need to focus more
sharply on their core competencies, accelerate
change, and achieve profitable growth.

CDI does this through four business segments: CDI
Professional Services, CD! Project Management,
Management Recruiters International, and Todays
Staffing. in 2002, each of these businesses was
called upon to streamline operations and shift
focus to higher-margin services and markets.
Though some felt economic pressures more
severely than others, each improved its profitabil-
ity and made important progress toward CDI's
growth objectives.
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A core business that is gaining in importance for us
is CDI Engineering Solutions, which we report as
part of our Project Management segment (the
other piece of Project Management being CDI
Innovantage, our information technology solutions
operation). Despite the challenges of a major reor-
ganization, 2002 was an exciting year for CDI Engi-
neering Solutions, whose operations are organized
around the key vertical markets to which we offer
high-value Aerospace Technologies,
Biotech & Pharmaceutical, Chemical & Industrial,
and Government Services. Under the leadership of
its new president, Robert Giorgio, CDI Engineering
Solutions announced approximately $143 million in
new business wins on an annualized basis. Most
importantly, these tend to be long-cycle contracts
that, as the unit grows, should provide a significant
offset to the economic cyclicality that affects more
staffing oriented companies.

services:

CDI innovantage is also focused on high-value
outsourced solutions, in the area of information
technology. Although its revenues were flat in
2002, reflecting the softness in demand for infor-
mation technology outsourcing, the division had
commendable direct margin growth due to its
concentration on longer-cycle business in high-
growth sectors and a sharper focus on its core
competency: infrastructure management.

CDI Professional Services, which offers information
technology and technical staffing services and
managed staffing solutions to customers in tar-
geted vertical markets, completed its main restruc-
turing activities in the first half of 2002. Led by
President Charles Abadie, the unit organized
around a new sales and service delivery model.
Although its revenues in 2002 were affected by
CDI's decision to exit low-margin business and the
continuing softness in demand for information
technology staffing, the unit improved its prof-
itability due to a more advantageous mix of higher
value business. It expects to gain revenue momen-
tum in 2003 by expanding its high-margin product
lines and improving the skill and effectiveness of its
sales organization.

CDI reports results for AndersElite, our business
based in the United Kingdom, as part of CDI Pro-
fessional Services. A strong niche player in profes-
sional staffing for the building and construction
industry, AndersElite experienced solid growth in
2002 even as its top leadership completed a
planned transition from founder Phil Anders to
the highly capable hands of its long-time manag-
ing director, Paul Metcalfe.
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Our goal is simple: to consistently
demonstrate our ability to achieve
orofitable growth, no matter the
external circumstances.

Management Recruiters International (MRI), a
global franchise network and specialty staffing
firm, is the world’s largest executive search and
recruitment organization. MRI experienced a steep
revenue decline in 2002, as companies around the
world continued to downsize or delay permanent
hiring. The challenging economic conditions, how-
ever, served as a catalyst for refining the MRI busi-
ness model. In the third quarter, MRl President
Allen Salikof initiated a restructuring program,
closing or selling company-owned permanent
placement offices that operated in perceived com-
petition with MR! franchisees to concentrate on
improving its service to the franchise network. In
addition to its franchise operations, MRI operates
specialty staffing divisions focused on shorter-term
executive assignments and temporary health care
professionals. MRI's franchise network gives it an
important competitive advantage: when the econ-
omy improves, its owner/operators will be poised
to capitalize on the pent-up demand for hiring.

Todays Staffing, whose talent lines include admin-
istrative, legal and finance professionals, also saw
significant change in 2002. Dirk Dent, whose
career with CDI spans more than 20 years, was
named president in September and immediately

embarked on a plan to reorganize the business. In
place of a large number of small offices in scat-
tered geographies, the unit consclidated around a
more sales-focused “cluster model,” concentrating
its resources in larger, higher profile offices in large
metropolitan markets while at the same time sig-
nificantly reducing its overhead cost structure.
Todays is also adding value for its customers by
expanding beyond temporary placement to include
permanent placement and project business in core
talent lines.

CDVs Corporate group worked alongside its busi-
ness units to reduce the overhead burden on the
business, improve efficiency, and leverage syner-
gies across the enterprise. Corporate expenses
decreased from $23.4 million in 2001 to $18 mil-
lion in 2002. We continued to add discipline to
our working capital management and other prac-
tices, resulting in excellent cash flow and a reduc-
tion in Days Sales Outstanding from 60 in 2001 to
58 in 2002.

The Task in 2003: Profitable Growth

The bottom line in 2002: CDI had a very successful
year despite the harshest business conditions most
of us have experienced. As | write this, however,
we're well into 2003, and we face a more difficult
task: creating shareholder value the old-fashioned
way, by growing organically, and profitably.




At the beginning of 2002, we expressed our cau-
tiously optimistic belief that the economy would
begin to improve in the second half of the year.
Instead, the economic uncertainty has been com-
pounded by world events, and investors have been
barraged with highly publicized accounts of corpo-
rate wrongdoing. Our response? We have made
strategic investments to augment our senior finan-
cial team and enhance our financial and operational
controls. We remain sharply focused on shareholder
value and are committed to candor and trans-
parency in our communications. What goes on
around us is outside our sphere of influence, so we
will remain focused on what we can control and
continue to exercise caution in our planning, and
execute with discipline and precision.

Our goal is simple: to consistently demonstrate our
ability to achieve profitable growth, no matter the
external circumstances. Qur no-excuses growth plan
is predicated on our belief that we have a rational,
competitive business model thanks to the hard
work we did in 2002. In 2003, we will focus on
strengthening our sales force, creating a “culture of
perfermance,” and continuing to find ways to
maximize value for our employees, customers and
shareholders.

Thank you for your interest in CDI.

Sincerely,

Roger H. Ballou
President and Chief Executive Officer

The Values that Guide us

These are the core values that guide us in creating
value for our shareholders and customers.

We strive to be:

Results Driven
We measure our success by the value we
deliver for our shareholders and customers.

Disciplined
We hold one another and ourselves accountable
for the highest standards of performance.

Collaborative

We work with our colleagues and customers
toward shared goals and mutual rewards in an
environment of respect.

Candid
We interact with our shareholders, our customers
and one another in a candid and straightforward
fashion.

Competitive '
We compete aggressively and win ethically.
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CDlis a professio-nal services and outsourcing company with four primary business
segments: CDI Professional Services, CDI Project Management, Management
Recruiters International, and Todays Staffing.

Mission

CDI helps customers in targeted vertical markets achieve a faster and higher return on capital investment by providing
high-value engineering and information technology solutions and specialized talent on demand. Our solutions provide
them with the speed, skill and scale they need to focus more sharply on their core competencies, accelerate change
and achieve profitable growth.

Employees

Approximately 18,000 on staff and at client sites.

Customer Base

Government and Fortune 1000 customers in selected vertical markets, including aerospace, financial services,
defense, information technology, chemical, industrial, biotech and pharmaceutical, and construction.

Market Scope

Based in Philadelphia, with an extensive network of offices in the United States, Canada and the United Kingdom,
as well as operations and strategic alliances in Europe, Asia and Australia. In addition, the MRI franchise network
extends to more than 25 countries around the world.

Business Segments |

2002 Business Segment Revenue

13%
$149.4 million

7%

0 CD! Professional
Services

i, CDI Project
Management

O Management
Recruiters
International

.~ Todays Staffing

85.9 million #
$ million 539%

$622.9 million
27%

$311.3 million \\

2002 Business Segment Operating Profit
After Event-Driven and Restructuring Charges

\ 28%
) $6.9 million

]

6%
$1.5 million

28%
$6.9 million

38%
$9.4 million

2002 Business Segment Operating Profit
Before Restructuring and Event-Driven Charges
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CDI had corporate expenses in 2002 of $18 million after event-driven and restructuring charges.
Combined with the segments' data, CDI's operating profit was $6.7 million after restructuring

and event-driven charges.



Business Segments

CDI Professional Services

CDI Professional Services offers information technology and technical staffing services and managed staffing solutions to
customers in targeted vertical markets. Service delivery is tailored to client need and can range from staff augmentation
and outsourcing services to “vendor-on-site,” technology-enabled managed staffing programs. The unit employs some
7,000 highly skilled information technology professionals, engineers and designers, sourcing them from a network of more
than 70 offices in the U.S., Canada and Europe. AndersElite, based in the United Kingdom, reports results as part of CDI
Professional Services. AndersElite is a strong niche player in professional staffing for the construction industry in the U.K.
It also has operations in Austrafia. The segment’s key initiatives in 2003 are to expand its offerings to grow high-margin
business in targeted vertical markets, increase its global footprint by leveraging existing business in Europe and expand-
ing AndersElite operations in Australia, and to lead the industry in effectiveness and efficiency of placements.

Professional ANDERS.I:
Services A €01 Company “e“te

CDI Project Management

CD! Project Management, which comprises CD! Engineering Solutions and CDI Innovantage, provides engineering and information
technology solutions to government and Fortune 1000 clients in high technology and capital intensive vertical markets. CDI
Engineering Solutions is divided into four operations focused around the key vertical markets to which it offers high-value services:
Aerospace Technologies, Biotech & Pharmaceutical, Chemical & Industrial, and Government Services. It employs more than 3,500
engineers, designers and technicians who work on projects of varying size and complexity at full-service engineering offices in the
U.S., Canada, the United Kingdom and at customer sites worldwide. Strategic partnerships in Europe and the Far East further
enhance CDI Engineering Solutions’ global reach. CDI Innovantage delivers information technology outsource services such as infra-
structure management, enterprise support services and technology advisory services that enable clients to focus their resources on
core business objectives. In 2003, CDI Engineering Solutions will seek to increase its mix of long-cycle projects and alliance con-
tracting, selectively expand its product lines by offering high-value, life-cycle specialized services; and focus on higher margin, larger
engineering projects. CDI Innovantage will focus on increasing its mix of business from multi-year annuity contracts, selectively
develop new sector-specific products, and expand wholesale services within the alliance/partner channel by providing outsource

services as a vendor to the primary IT outsource providers.
@ Engineering ld>l] innovantage
Solutions i
Management Recruiters International

Management Recruiters International (MR!), a global franchise network and specialty staffing firm, is the world’s largest search
and recruitment organization, with approximately 1,145 offices worldwide. MRI provides a full range of search and mid-level
and senior-level recruitment services, from single searches for a key manager to major programs involving hundreds of assign-
ments for a single client. MRI’s franchise network specializes in mid-level permanent placement. its specialty staffing operations
include Banister International, focusing on C-suite-level permanent placement; Interkxec, focusing on temporary executive level
placement; and, MedLogix, specializing in temporary placement of healthcare professionals. MRI's key initiatives in 2003 are to
enhance services to the franchise network, grow its specialty staffing business, and develop national sales channels to capture
single-source client projects. M“

A CDI Company
Todays Staffing
Todays Staffing provides temporary and permanent placement of administrative, legal and financial professionals, as well as
project-based assignments in its core talent lines. Divisions include Todays Office Staffing, specializing in administrative office
support; Todays Legal Staffing, specializing in full service professional and administrative legal staffing; and, in Canada,
Todays Staffing Ltd., specializing in administrative office and light industrial staffing. Todays operates more than 95 offices
throughout the United States and Canada. In 2003, Todays Staffing will continue to improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of its cluster business model and implement it within larger metropolitan markets, add new talent lines in growing vertical
markets, and refine its sales processes and approach to market.

3T AFF I NGO
A CDI Company



= Finandsl Highlights —

Years ended December 31

(In thousands, except per share data and ratios)

2002 2001 2000
Revenue $ 1,169,475 1,458,592 1,675,455
Year-to-Year Growth {20%) (13%) 8%
Cperating Profit (Loss) s 6,701 (23,027) 53,339
% of Revenue 0.6% (1.6%) 3.2%
Earnings (Loss):
Continuing $ 4,082 (16,704) 28,811
Net (0) $ (9.359) (15,610) 33,003
Earnings (Loss) Per Share Diluted:
Continuing $ 0.21 0.88) 1.51
Net $ (0.48) (0.82) 1.73
Shareholders Equity $ 307,801 310,650 325,795
Per Share $ 15.90 16.24 17.09
Return on Equity (a) 1% (5%) 9%
Leverage (b) 0.2% 2% 13%
Shares Outstanding 19,355 19,128 19,065

(a) Continuing earnings (loss) divided by average equity.
(b) Debt to total capital.
(c) After discontinued operations and effect of accounting change.
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The Company

Overview

CDI Corp. {the “Company” or "CDI") is a professiona! services
and outsourcing company, with core competencies in engi-
neering and information technology (staffing and outsourcing)
and related technical staffing, permanent placement, and spe-
clalized and administrative staffing. The Company’s principal
executive offices are located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. CD!
concentrates its market focus on several vertical sectors,
including aerospace, financial services, construction, pharma-
ceutical/biotech, petrochemicals, government and computer
services and derives the majarity of its revenues from Fortune
1000 companies serviced primarily in the United States. There
was no single customer from whom the Company derived
10% or more of its consclidated revenues, during 2002, 2001
or 2000. All of the Compary's segments operate in highly-
competitive multi-billion dollar markets with no single market
being dominant.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company announced a
multi-phased plan to restructure and reorganize its operations
and systems and support infrastructure. Key elements of this
“Plan of Restructure” included:

o Reducing staff headcount by approximately 33 percent
and operating offices by approximately 25 percent;

o Reorganizing the remaining business into four operating
segments: Professional Services (“PS”), Project Manage-
ment ("PM"), Management Recruiters International
("MRI") and Todays Staffing (“Todays");

o Exiting under-performing contracts and businesses;

o Streamlining and simplifying core information systems;
and

o Consolidating and relocating back-office services.

The ability to recruit talent is a core competency for the
Company. In every segment of the Company, personnel are
recruited by the Company and assigned to work for customers at
either customer locations or in the Company's own offices. Such
recruited personnel are employees of CDI. In some cases, the
Company may assume risk with respect to the performance of its
services and the acceptability of its employees to its customers.

In certain cases, particularly in the PS segment, the services of
personnel (“supplier associates employees”) supplied by other
staffing companies or contractors (“supplier associates”) are
used to fulfill customer contract requirements. In these cases, the
Company receives an administrative fee for arranging for, billing

for and collecting the billings related to the supplier associates.
Typically, the customer is responsible for assessing the work of
the supplier associates who have the responsibility for the per-
formance acceptability of their personnel to the customer.

In the PM segment, the Company recruits and hires engineer-
ing, information technology and other technical professionals
to work on a project basis either on-site at customer locations
or in CDI's own offices. Such recruited personnel are employees
of the Company. This segment also performs outsourcing par-
ticularly with respect to customers’ internal systems operations.
In this segment, the Company may assume risk with respect to
the performance of its services. The Company may also assume
responsibility for the quality of the project or deliverable and
the terms, particularly the cost and length of time, under which
the Company agrees to deliver the project.

MRl is in the business of providing permanent placement services
through a network of approximately 1,145 franchised offices
throughout the world. MRI also provides specialized staffing ser-
vices primarily focused on shorter term middle-management
execUtive assignments through its franchise network and
Company-owned offices and temporary health care professionals
through its Company-owned offices. This operating segment
derives its revenue from initial franchise fees, continuing fran-
chise royalties, placement fees and specialized staffing services.

Todays primarily provides temporary, administrative and office
support staff, as well as legal and finance professionals. The
segment recruits and hires employees and provides these per-
sonnel to the customer on a contract or project basis. In man-
aged staffing, the segment not only provides the employees
but also manages the customer’s entire contract staffing needs
in identified areas.

CDI's staffing services are designed to help customers meet a
variety of needs in a flexible, efficient, and cost-effective manner.
Typically, the demand for CDI's staffing services is driven by one
or a combination of the following customer needs: to acquire
staff quickly, efficiently, and often in large volumes; to acquire
special skills and talent; and to reduce costs while improving effi-
ciency by outsourcing certain human resources functions.

CDI's project management and outsourcing services are
designed to give customers a strategic advantage by enabling
them to outsource whole projects or functions that are essen-
tial but not necessarily core to the customers’ business. By out-
sourcing these projects or functions, customers can deploy
capital more efficiently; achieve cost savings and enhance their
return on capital investment; accelerate expansion; react more
quickly to change and opportunity; maintain stability in their
workforce while preserving the ability to scale up to meet
increases in demand; and benefit from the talents of highly spe-
cialized, skilled and experienced professionals without carrying
them as permanent staff.




For financial information about gecographic areas, see Note 17
— Operating Segments to the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

Operating Segments

The following table sets forth (in thousands) the revenues and
pre-tax earnings from continuing operations of the operating
segments of the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries
during the years indicated and the assets attributable to each
segment as of the end of each year.

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Revenues:
Professional Services $ 622,931 809,549 911,775
Project Management 311,256 352,210 388,020
Management Recruiters 85,901 103,167 136,752
Todays Staffing 149,387 193,666 238,908
$ 1,169,475 1458592 1,675,455
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes,
minarity interests and cumulative
effect of accounting change:
Operating profit (loss)
Professional Services $ 6,880 (3,984) 20,148
Project Management 9,423 (10,957) 12,582
Management Recruiters 6,902 12,746 30,716
Todays Staffing 1,486 2,616 15,153
Corporate expenses (17,990) (23,448) (25,260)
6,701 (23,027) 53,339
Interest (income) expense, net (115) 3,065 5,183
$ 6,816 (26,092) 48,150
Assets:
Professional Services $ 155,650 212,148 272,933
Project Management 89,996 120,032 154,013
Management Recruiters 44,779 47,247 52,029
Todays Staffing 38,934 50,171 62,199
Corporate 103,415 28,134 9,491
Net assets of discontinued
operations ) - 14,840 21,364
$ 432,774 472,572 572,029

The items reported above for 2001 and 2000 have been
restated to reflect the Company’s reorganization.

Professional Services (“PS”)

PS offers information technology, engineering, and technical
staffing solutions to customers in targeted vertical markets,
including financial services, pharmaceuticals, information ser-
vices and government. The segment’s service delivery is tailored
to the unigue needs of the customer, its most basic being to
provide skilled professionals to work at a single customer loca-
tion on a temporary basis. The segment’s highest value to cus-
tomers is in the provision of customized managed staffing

solutions, which may include serving as the lead recruiter
among several vendors, the procurement of hundreds of pro-
fessional employees across a broad geographic area, the provi-
sion of on-site’ management of staffing requirements and
certain human resources functions and the utilization of web-
based technology to support these functions. The Company’s
PS segment also includes AndersElite, a major provider of build-
ing and construction professionals based in the United
Kingdom. Approximately 75 percent of the segment’s revenue
is derived domestically with the balance coming from foreign
operations.

In providing its staffing services, this segment recruits and hires
employees or secures supplier associate employees and pro-
vides these personnel to customers for assignments that, on
average, last six to nine months. The vast majority of services
are performed in the customers’ facilities (“in-customer”).
Customers use the segment’s employees or supplier associate
employees to meet peak period personnel needs, to fill in for
employees who are ill or on vacation, to provide additional
capabilities in times of expansion and change, and to work on
projects requiring specialized skills.

In managed staffing, this segment not only provides employ-
ees but may also manage the customer’s entire contract
staffing needs, as well as certain human resource functions
required to manage the customer’s contract workforce. When
providing managed staffing services, the segment frequently
establishes on-site offices at one or more of the customer’s
facilities, staffs it with employees from the segment and ties
that office into the segment’s business systems. In some
instances, managed staffing services also include the coordi-
nation of supplier associates employees assigned to the cus-
tomer from other staffing companies. The segment may add
value to its managed staffing services with web-based tech-
nology that helps to accelerate and streamline the procure-
ment and management of contract employees and the
coordination and supervision of supplier associates.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, PS provided ser-
vices to approximately 2,100 customers. Historically, much of
its business has been performed for large multi-national manu-
facturing and industrial corporations, but the segment has
begun to penetrate non-industrial fields such as financial ser-
vices, pharmaceuticals, information services, and government.
In 2002, one large industrial corporation comprised 15 percent
of PS total revenues while the top 10 customers accounted for
less than 50 percent. Customers are geographically dispersed.
Managed staffing services are concentrated among a small
number of these customers, which tend to be among the
largest U.S. corporations.




In providing staffing services, employees are hired by the seg-
ment and assigned to work for a customer. The duration of an
assignment depends upon the customer's needs for the skills of
an individual employee. At the end of an assignment, the
employee is either reassigned within a current customer,
assigned to perform services with another customer, or employ-
ment is terminated. Supplier associates employees are
employed by another staffing company or contractor and are
assigned to work for a customer. At the end of an assignment
the services of supplier associates are usually terminated.

Pricing under substantially ali contracts between PS and its
customers is based on mark-ups on prevailing rates of pay.
Contracts generally do not obligate the customer to pay for
any fixed number of hours. Segment revenues are recorded on
a gross basis as services are performed and associated costs
have been incurred. The segment records an administrative fee
as revenue where supplier associates are used. Generally the
customer has the right to terminate the contract, usually on
short notice. PS maintains the right to terminate its staffing
employees at will.

PS personnel are attracted to this type of employment by the
opportunity to work on “state-of-the-art” projects and by the
geographic and industrial diversity of the assignments. In addi-
tion, they are generally compensated at very competitive rates.
In some cases, employees view these contract assignments as a
bridge to permanent employment. PS employees are subject to
its administrative control. The customer retains technical and
supervisory control. When the segment provides managed
staffing services, the segment may provide additional adminis-
trative supervision for its employees. Supervisory personnel at
managed programs are generally long-term employees and are
important to the continuing relationship with customers,

The ability of PS to find and hire employees with the capabilities
required by customers is critical to its operations. Such personnel
usually have prior experience in their area of expertise. During
periods of high demand for specific skills, it is not uncommon for
PS to expertence pressure to pay higher wage rates or lose
employees to competitors who will pay such rates in an attempt
to attract personnel with the required skills. Similarly, wage rates
typically decline in periods of lower demand for such skills. To
assist in fulfilling its personnel néeds, a computerized retrieval
system facilitates the rapid selection of resumes on file so that
customers’ requirements may be filled quickly.

PS operates through a network of approximately 63 sales and
recruiting offices located in major markets throughout the
United States and 9 internationa! offices. Marketing activities
are conducted by divisional and regional management to ascer-
tain opportunities in specific geographical areas. Each office
assists in identifying the patential markets for services in its
geographic area, and develops that market through personal

contact with prospective and existing customers. Additionally,
PS’ operating management stays abreast of emerging demand
for services so that efforts can be expanded or redirected to
take advantage of potential business either in established or
new marketing areas. Customers typically invite several compa-
nies to bid for contracts, which are awarded primarily on the
basis of price, value-added services and prior performance.
Many times customers grant multi-vendor contracts.

Project Management (“PM")

PM provides engineering and information technology consult-
ing, project management, outsourcing and related staffing ser-
vices to customers in high technology and capital intensive
markets. The segment provides high value-added services and
solutions to customers with contractual engagements that gen-
erally are more than a year in duration and focuses on the ver-
tical markets to which it delivers high-value services: aerospace
technologies, biotech & pharmaceutical, chemical & industrial,
and government. In addition, PM provides information technol-
ogy outsourcing solutions. Substantially, all of the segment’s
revenue is derived from domestic operations.

PM’s services typically involve managing a discrete portion or
portions of a customer’s capital project, including, but not fim-
ited to, preliminary or detailed plant design and construction
management; validation and commissioning of a facility; and
lifecycle support. To the extent such activities entail design and
planning work, they are typically performed in-house.
However, construction management, validation, commission-
ing and fifecycle support activities are generally performed on-
site. The segment also provides engineering consulting services
such as, feasibility studies, turnaround management, valida-
tion services and technical publications. The segment also
delivers information technology outsourced solutions such as
infrastructure management, enterprise support services and
technology advisory services.

in both engineering and information technology outsourcing,
this segment usually takes over a customer’s entire technical
department, staffing the department with employees, and man-
aging the production of the department’s output. In most
instances, the managed department is located on-site at the
customer’s premises, but in some cases the customer may prefer
an off-site location. in this case, this segment may need to main-
tain a stand-alone operation that provides technology systems
to support the operations for single or multiple customers.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, PM provided ser-
vices to approximately 330 customers. In 2002, one large multi-
national corporation comprised approximately 10% of PM's
total revenues. Customers and project locations are geograph-
ically dispersed. Services are performed in customers’ facilities
on-site and in PM’s own facilities (“in-house”} depending upon
industry practice and the needs and preferences of customers.




PM’s personnel are attracted to this type of employment by the
opportunity to work on “state-of-the-art” projects and by the
geographic and industrial diversity of the projects. In addition,
they are generally compensated at very competitive rates.

When performing services on an in-customer basis, PM's
employees are on PM’s payroll and are subject to its adminis-
trative control. When services are performed in-house, PM gen-
erally provides supervision for employees, and may have
increased responsibility for the performance of work that is
generally monitored in conjunction with customer personnel.
This segment is not reliant on supplier associates to any signif-
icant degree.

The ability of PM to find and hire employees with the capabili-
ties required by its customers is critical to its operations. Such
personnel usually have prior experience in their field of exper-
tise. During periods of high demand for specific skills, it is not
uncommon for PM to experience pressure to pay higher wage
rates or lose employees to competitors who will pay such rates
in an attempt to attract personnel with the required skills.
Similarly, wage rates typically decline in periods of lower
demand for such skills.

Pricing under the majority of contracts between PM and its cus-
tomers is based on mark-ups on prevailing hourly rates of pay,
whereby revenues are recorded on a gross basis. Contracts gen-
erally do not obligate the customer to pay for any fixed num-
ber of hours. However, less than 15% of PM’s revenue was
derived from fixed-price and outsourcing contracts. In these
instances, the Company recognizes revenue using the percent-
age of completion method. Generally the customer has the
right to terminate the contract, usually on short notice. PM
maintains the right to terminate its employees at will.

PM maintains approximately 34 offices across the United States
and has 5 international offices. Marketing activities are con-
ducted by divisional and regional management to ascertain
opportunities for PM in specific vertical markets. Each office
- assists in identifying the potential markets and develops that
market through personal contact with prospective and existing
customers. Additionally, PM’s operating management stays
abreast of emerging demand for services so that efforts can be
expanded or redirected to take advantage of potential business
in ejther established or new marketing areas. Customers typi-
cally invite several companies to bid for contracts, which are
awarded primarily on the basis of price, technological capabil-
ity, value-added services, and prior performance.

Management Recruiters International (*MRI")

MRI recruits executive, management, professional, technical,
sales, and clerical personnel for permanent employment posi-
tions with its customers. Candidates are recruited for many
different capacities including accounting, finance, informa-
tion technology, engineering, managerial, personnel, produc-
tion, research and development, sales, supervision, and
technical. This segment derives revenue mainly through its
franchised operations.

Fees paid by the customer for placement services are generally
a percentage of the annual compensation to be paid to the
new employee. Fees are paid on a retainer basis or on a con-
tingent basis after a qualified candidate has been hired and
remains employed for a trial period, generally 30 days. On
large, multiple placement projects, MRI can be engaged on a
retainer basis for up to a year in duration. MR! also provides cer-
tain specialty staffing on a temporary basis, at times with the
objective of permanently placing such personnel with the cus-
tomer-employer. MRl employs these temporary personnel.

As of December 31, 2002, MRI had approximately 1,145 fran-
chised offices and 13 company-owned specialty staffing
offices providing services to both large and small employers in
virtually all industries. The segment closed 21 company-owned
permanent placement offices during 2002 and sold 11 com-
pany-owned permanent placement offices during the third
guarter of 2002. Of the offices, 931 are located throughout
the United States with 227 offices located internationally. All
company-owned offices are located in the United States. The
broad geographic scope of operations enables franchisees to
provide naticnwide recruiting and matching of employers with
job candidates in the United States. The network utilizes an
inter-office referral system on both national and regional lev-
els, which enables offices to cooperate in fulfilling a customer’s
requirements. The segment provided services to approximately
1,000 customers.

Franchisees located in the U.S. pay an initial fee approximating
$77,000 to acquire a franchise. The fee is charged for estab-
lishing and bringing a new franchise into the system.
Franchisees also pay ongoing royalties based on a percentage
of the franchisee’s placement fees. Franchisees benefit from
MRI's expertise in the business, from its Internet presence,
national marketing, public relations support, purchasing lever-
age and advertising campaigns. Further, they receive extensive
pre-opening training and start-up assistance on site.
Franchisees also have the right to use MRI’s trade names, trade-
marks, the inter-office referral system, operating techniques,
advertising materials, sales programs, video and live interactive
training programs, computer programs, Internet and intranet
systems, manuals and forms.




A large number of companies are engaged in the recruitment
business and MRI encounters significant competition.
Employers commonly offer more than one company the oppor-
tunity to find qualified candidates for a position making com-
petition for qualified individuals intense. MRI's ability to obtain
placements with employers is determined more on its ability to
find qualified candidates than on its fee structure.

Todays Staffing (“Todays™)

The Company’s Todays operating segment primarily provides
temporary, administrative and office support staff, as well as
legal and finance professionals. The segment recruits and hires
employees and provides these personnel to the customer on a
contract or project basis. In managed staffing, the segment not
only provides the employees but also manages the customer's
entire contract staffing needs. This segment is not reliant on
supplier associates to any significant degree.

Customers retain Todays to meet peak period manpower
needs, to temporarily replace personnel on vacation and to
staff special projects. During the year ended December 31,
2002, these services were provided to approximately 5,700 cus-
tomers. This segment focuses on small to medium-sized cus-
tomers including banks, mortgage and insurance companies,
investment companies, utilities, hospitals, law firms and univer-
sities with no one customer exceeding 4% of total revenue.

Services are performed in customers’ facilities by Todays
employees who are hired to work on customers' projects. The
period of assignment depends on the need for the skills of the
individual employee. At the end of an assignment, an
employee is either reassigned within the current customer,
assigned to perform services with another customer, or
employment is terminated. The average assignment duration is
approximately nine weeks. Todays personnel are on Todays
payroll and are subject to its administrative control. The cus-
tomer retains supervisory control and responsibility for the per-
formance of the employee’s services. The ability of Todays to
locate and hire personnel with customer-specific capabilities is
critical to its operations.

Pricing is based on mark-ups on prevailing rates of pay, and
arrangements with the customer generally do not obligate the
customer to pay for any fixed number of hours. Segment rev-
enues are recorded on a gross basis as in the PS segment.
Generally the customer has the right to terminate services, usu-
ally on short notice. Todays maintains the right to terminate its
staffing employees at will.

Todays operates through a network of approximately 93 sales
and recruiting offices, of which 10 are franchised and situated
in the United States and 13 offices are located in Canada. As
part of the Plan of Restructure, the segment closed 15 com-
pany-owned offices during 2002. Each office is responsible for
determining the potential market for services in its geographic
area and developing that market through personal contact with
prospective and existing customers.

Revenues from both company and franchised offices are
reflected in the segment’s revenues. Todays employs all of the
temporary personnel, including those recruited by the fran-
chised offices, and also bears the responsibility for billing ser-
vices to customers. Franchisees are responsible for selling
services to customers, recruiting temporary personnel and for
administrative costs. The franchisee receives a portion of the
gross profit on the franchised accounts.

Employees

At December 31, 2002 the Registrant had approximately
18,000 employees. The Registrant believes that its relations
with its employees are generally good.

Access to Company Information

CDI Corp. electronically files its annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and all amendments to those reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). The public may read and copy any
of the reports that are filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC
20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site (http://www.sec.gov)
that contains reports, proxy, information statements, and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically.

CDI makes available, free of charge, through its website or by
responding to requests addressed to the Company's Vice
President of Corporate Communications, its annua! reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports filed by the
Company with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act, as amended. This report is avail-
able as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is
electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission. CDIl's website address is:
“http://www.cdicorp.com”. The information contained on the
Company's website, or on other websites linked to the
Company’s website, is not part of this document.



The Company has closed or sold approximately 100 operating
sites, primarily in the United States, as a result of its restructur-
ing and cost reduction efforts. Many of these facilities are
under non-cancelable operating leases. Accordingly, the
Company has negotiated lease buy-outs or subleases to mini-
mize the cash outflow requirements. In connection with the
Company's office closings, reserves were established to reflect
the net estimated future cash outlays related to closed office
leases. There exists some risk that actual future cash outlays
could exceed these reserves in the event of sublease defaults.
Refer to Note 16 (Leases) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information concerning operating lease
obligations and related sublease arrangements.

As part of the Company's restructuring and reorganization
efforts, some of the Company's offices accommodate more
than one operating segment. In such cases, square-foot usage
is allocated among the segments based on planned utilization.

The PS operating segment has approximately 63 active facilities
throughout the United States and 9 facilities internationally,
occupying a total of approximately 230,000 square feet of
space. Most of the active space is devoted to sales, marketing
and administrative functions, and a small portion is used for in-
house operations. The facilities are leased under terms gener-
ally extending up to five years.

The PM operating segment has approximately 34 active facil-
ities throughout the United States and 5 facilities internation-
ally, occupying a total of approximately 372,000 square feet
of space. Most of the space is devoted to in-house services
and the balance to sales, marketing and administrative func-
tions. The facilities are leased under terms generally extending
up to five years.

The MRI operating segment occupies approximately 82,000
square feet of office space at 13 active locations, primarily for
franchise-support back-office functions. The active facilities are
leased for varying terms, the majority of which extend up to
five years. MR! also has approximately 1,145 franchised offices.
Generally, franchisees enter into their own leases for which this
segment assumes no obligation.

The Todays operating segment occupies approximately
156,000 square feet of office space in approximately 83 active
locations for its company-owned temporary services offices.
The active facilities are leased for varying terms generally
extending up to five years. Todays' also has 10 franchised
offices. Franchisees enter into their own leases for which this
segment assumes no obligation.

The Company's corporate headquarters is located in

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania occupying approximately 64,000
square feet of office space. CDI's shared services center occu-
pies approximately 37,000 square feet of office space in
Philadelphia for back-office functions. CDI's shared services
center is being transitioned from Philadelphia to West Virginia.
The Philadelphia facilities have remaining lease terms of less
than five years.

Stock price and other information regarding the Company's
common stock is for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, and can be found in the table below. CDI's common
stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange.

2002 2001
High Low High Low
First quarter $ 23.78 18.58 17.00 12.00
Second quarter 32.55 22.06 18.20 12.50
Third quarter 32.49 22.90 18.45 11.05
Fourth quarter 29.30 23.43 20.50 13.82

No cash dividends were declared during the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Company has no present
intention of paying cash dividends during the year ending
December 31, 2003.

Shareholders of record on March 14, 2003 numbered 488. This
number counts each street name account as only one share-
holder, when, in fact, such an account may represent multiple
owners, Taking into account such multiple owners, the total
number of shareholders approximated 3,800.

On October 14, 2002, the Company issued 10,000 restricted
shares of the Company's common stock to Jay G. Stuart, the
Company's Chief Financial Officer, as part of an arrangement
made to induce Mr. Stuart to join the Company. On November
18, 2002, the Company issued 3,000 restricted shares to an



officer of a subsidiary of the Company, as part of an arrange-
ment made to induce that officer to join the subsidiary. On June
17, 2002, 1,309 shares of common stock were issued by the
Company to an officer of another subsidiary of the Company
upon vesting of units awarded to that officer under the

Company’s Stock Unit Plan. In all three cases, the shares were
issued in consideration for services performed or to be per-
formed by the recipient. Each of those issuances was made in
reliance on the exemption from registration found in section
4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.

Following is Selected Financial Data for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998. The data presented is

in thousands, except for per share data.

Earnings Data:

Revenues

Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before cumulative
effect of accounting change

Discontinued operations

Cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax

Net (loss) earnings

Basic (loss) earnings per share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Discontinued operaticns
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Net (loss) earnings

Diluted {loss) earnings per share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Discentinued operations
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Net (loss) earnings

Cash dividends

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets

Long-term debt (including current portion)
Shareholders’ equity

2002

2001 2000 1999 1998

$ 1,169,475

1,458,592 1,675,455 1,552,831 1,477,479

S 4,082 (16,704) 28,811 45,514 42,906
527 1,094 4,192 6,933 2,671
(13,968) ; ; . )

$  (9,359) (15,610) 33,003 52,447 45,577
$ 0.21 (0.88) 151 2.39 2.18
$ 0.03 0.06 0.22 0.36 0.14
$ (0.73) - . . )
$ (0.49) (0.82) 1.73 2.76 2.32
$ 0.21 (0.88) 1.51 2.38 2.18
$ 0.03 0.06 0.22 0.36 0.14
$ (0.71) - - ) ]
$ (0.48) (0.82) 1.73 2.74 2.32
$ - . - - -
$ 432,774 472,572 572,029 531,680 435,814
$ 480 7,913 49,623 65,651 35,059
$ 307,801 310,650 325,795 293,844 240,369

The financial data listed above has been restated to reflect 1) Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus No. 01-14, which deals with
the recognition of certain direct expenses as a component of revenue and 2) SFAS 144, which required that Modern Engineering's
operations be treated as a discontinued operation as a result of divestiture in 2002. Refer to Note 1 - Significant Account Policies
of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information..




Overview

CD! participates in a market that is cyclical in nature and
extremely sensitive to economic changes. As a result, the
impact of economic changes on revenues and operations can
be volatile. The Company’s consolidated revenues have
declined 30.2% since 2000. The most significant portion of
that decline occurred in the past year. Prior to 2001, CDI had
established significant personnel and complex system infras-
tructures to support a high-growth strategy through broad-
based market penetration and acquisitions. The dramatic
slowdown in the United States economy, which began during
2000, prompted management to reconsider its strategy. In
that regard, the Company initiated non-strategic reductions in
its staff personnel and office requirements in response to the

drop in sales volume during mid-year 2001. At the same time, -

strategic reviews were conducted to develop a comprehensive
new strategy.

In October of 2001, a new Chief Executive Officer began to
address the Company’s operating challenges and developed a
Plan of Restructure, which was approved by the Company's
Board of Directors in December 2001. Under this multi-phased
Plan, CDI commenced a process in December 2001 that contin-
ued into the fourth quarter of 2002 to exit lower-margin cus-
tomer contracts, re-deploy assets (by selling its Modern
Engineering subsidiary and certain MRI permanent placement
offices), support growth in higher-margin businesses and lower
its break-even point through structural cost reductions. This Plan
of Restructure was announced in three phases. Phase 1,
announced in December 2001, focused primarily on the
Company's newly recrganized PS segment as well as simplifica-
tion of the Company’s core information systems. Phase 2,
announced in March 2002, focused primarily on the Company’s
PM segment and Phase 3, announced in September 2002,
focused primarily on Todays, MRI and back-office services. The
Company also achieved cost reductions through the streamlining
of its information technology and financial systems, as well as
operations management and support structures. Management
reorganized its businesses into four operating segments:
Professional Services, Project Management, Management
Recruiters International and Todays Staffing. In conjunction with
the Plan of Restructure, the Company recorded provisions for
restructure in both 2002 and 2001 as noted below:

Years ended December 31,

(in millions) 2002 2001
Asset impairments $ 3.2 13.8
Provision for severance 3.5 4.7
Provision for termination of operating leases 5.9 35

$ 12,6 22.0

The breakdown of these costs by operating segment is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

(in millions) 2002 2001
Professional Services T $ 25 11.6
Project Management 4.0 7.1
Todays Staffing 3.9 0.6
Management Recruiters 1.6 1.9
Corporate 0.6 0.8

$ 126 220

The provisions for asset impairment primarily relate to the
write-down of the Company’s Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) System that was fully decommissioned on June 30, 2002.
The Company has been migrating to systems that are targeted
to meet specific business needs with lower complexity and
investment requirement, and support costs. During the decom-
missioning period, the Company recorded approximately $7.0
million of accelerated depreciation to reflect the revised carry-
ing cost of the ERP System over its revised service life. These
depreciation costs were recorded as a component of operating
and administrative expenses in 2002.

The provisions for severance relate to the involuntary termina-
tion of approximately 570 staff, which were granted discre-
tionary severances by the Company. To the extent certain
critical employees were granted stay-on bonuses, such costs
were charged to operations as services were rendered.
Substantially all employee terminations were completed by
December 2002.

The provisions for the termination of operating leases relate to
the Company’s decision to close approximately 100 offices under
the Plan of Restructure. Such provisions consider estimated sub-
lease rentals and anticipated lease buycuts. Substantially all
office closures were completed by December 2002.

Collectively, the Company recorded pre-tax provisions for
restructuring of $34.6 million ($22.0 million in December 2001,
$4.1 million in March 2002, and $8.5 million in September
2002). Phase 1 was fully implemented by December 2002 and
Phases 2 and 3 were substantially completed by that date. The
Plan of Restructure, together with other cost containment ini-
tiatives launched in both 2001 and 2002 has resulted in signif-
icant reductions in CDI's cost structure. In addition, there has
been an ongoing focus on working capital management and
cash flows. These efforts have resulted in an improvement in
customer repayment terms, debt reduction, and improved cash
flows. More importantly, the Company has improved discipline
in its marketing and sales strategies and now focuses on
growth in targeted vertical markets and in service offerings pro-
viding the greatest opportunities to maximize returns. Key ser-
vice offerings in ascending order of returns and value to
customers include: administrative staffing, technical (engineer-




ing) staffing, information technology staffing, managed solu-
tions, engineering and information technology outsourcing,
and management recruiting.

In 2002, implementation of the Plan of Restructure resulted in
year-over-year cost reductions of approximately $42.0 million.
In 2003, the Company anticipates additional cost savings,
related to its Plan of Restructure, of approximately $18 million.
At December 31, 2002, the Company has a residual restructur-
ing liability of $8.9 million, which relates primarily to lease ter-
mination costs. The severance component of this liability will be
liguidated in 2003 and the lease component will be substan-
tially liquidated by 2005, although it is management’s intent to
liguidate the lease obligations as soon as possible.

In addition to charges related to the Company's Plan of
Restructure, the sale of Modern Engineering, and certain
Company-owned permanent placement offices, the Company
has recorded certain other charges in each of the years in the
three-year period ended Decernber 31, 2002 that are reflected
in operating and administrative costs. These amounts totaled
$7.5 million in 2002, $8.8 million in 2001, and $11.7 million in
2000. Such charges relate primarily to accelerated depreciation
of the Company’s ERP system, various accounts receivable
adjustments, non-strategic reductions in both staff personnel
and offices, and the settlement of a dispute with the
Company’s health insurance provider. Further, the Company
ceased amortizing its goodwill as of January 1, 2002. Goodwill
amortization for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
was $5.7 million and $5.5 million, respectively.

While the economic environment was challenging in 2002, as
evidenced by the decline in revenue, CDI began to reap the
benefits of the actions noted above. in 2002, the Company
improved its overall financial condition in both its income state-
ment and balance sheet by increasing its operating margins,
lowering its costs structure, and collecting its receivables. CDI
has established a financial foundation and strategy that man-
agement believes can support both profit and growth when the
economy begins to improve.
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Resuits of Operations, year ended December 31, 2002
vs. year ended December 31, 2001

Consolidated Results .

The Company recorded consolidated revenues of $1,169.5 mil-
lion in 2002, down $289.1 million or 19.8% from last year, as
each operating segment reported lower revenues.
Approximately 50% of this decline is attributable to the fol-
lowing three items: 1) the decision to exit lower-margin con-
tracts primarily in the PS segment; 2) the sale of the
company-owned offices in MRI; and 3) the dramatic decline in
telecommunications work that is part of the PM segment. The
remaining decline is primarily attributable to the challenging
business climate in the U.S. economy, particularly in the infor-
mation technology sector within PS and in the Todays segment.
MRI is also operating in a difficult job placement market as
employers delay hiring. However, AndersElite in the U.K., which
operates in the PS segment, experienced strong growth in
2002. excluding all the revenue from telecommunications work
in both 2002 and 2001, PM revenues actually increased 5.6 %
in 2002 as compared to 2001. This growth was primarily driven
by revenues in the biopharmaceutical and chemical sectors.

The Company’s gross profit of $304.8 million in 2002 is lower
by $62.2 million or 17.0% as compared to 2001, primarily due
to lower sales volume, partially offset by the consolidated gross
profit margin increase from 25.2% in 2001 to 26.1% in 2002.
This margin improvement reflects the shift from lower-margin
contracts to higher-margin and longer-cycle assignments. With
the exception of MRI, all operating segments showed improved
gross profit margins in 2002 as compared to 2001.

In 2002, operating and administrative expenses of $284.3 mil-
lion are $83.8 million or 22.8% lower than operating and
administrative expenses incurred in 2001, Approximately $42.0
million or 50.0% of this reduction is directly attributable to sav-
ings from the aforementioned Plan of Restructure and other
actions taken to reduce personnel requirements, office loca-
tions, and systems infrastructure. In addition, due to a combi-
nation of declines in revenue and enhanced financial discipline,
expenses were reduced by $35.0 million year-over-year. Finally, -
operating expenses in 2001 included almost $6 million of
goodwill amortization.

As previously discussed, the Company instituted a multi-phased
Plan of Restructure in 2007. The first phase of the Plan of
Restructure resulted in a pre-tax charge in 2001 of $22.0 mil-
lion. Follow-up phases of the Plan of Restructure were defined,
planned and approved by management in 2002 and resulted in
pre-tax charges of $12.6 million.

in the third quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a loss on
the sale of its MRI company-owned permanent placement
offices of $1.3 million. This transaction was completed to focus
MR! on its franchise operations and provide capital to re-deploy
toward franchise support.




Operating profit for the year ended 2002 was $6.7 million, a
$29.7 million improvement over 2001. Despite the significant
decline in gross profit of $62.2 million, primarily as a result of
the reduction in revenue, the Company was able to achieve sig-
nificant reductions in its operating and administrative expenses
of $83.8 million. In addition, restructuring provisions were $9.4
million lower in 2002, which were partially offset by a loss on
sale of assets of $1.3 million associated with its MRI company-
owned permanent placement offices.

Net interest income was $0.1 million in 2002 as compared to
net interest expense of $3.1 million in 2001. This was due to
the elimination of all bank borrowings, as well as interest
income from invested cash.

The Company's effective income tax rate was 38.1% in 2002,
37.5% in 2001, and 38.4% in 2000.

In June 2002, the Company sold the net operating assets of
its subsidiary Modern Engineering, Inc. (“Modern”}), which
operated in its PM operating segment. Accordingly, Modern's
activity is reflected as discontinued operations in the accom-
panying financial statements in accordance with the require-
ments of SFAS-144. All financial statements have been
restated accordingly.

In 2002, the Company recorded impairment charges of $21.4
million, {$14.0 million after-tax) for the write-off of goodwill.
These charges primarily relate to a former acquisition in the PS
segment, and are presented as a change in accounting as of
January 1, 2002, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS-142.

The Company's net loss per diluted share in 2002 was $0.48
compared to a net loss per diluted share of $0.82 in 2001.
Acquisition activity in 2002 or 2001 was not significant and
therefore did not have any meaningful effect on operations.

Segment Discussion

Professicnal Services (“P5")

PS’s revenues of $622.9 million decreased $186.6 million in
2002 or 23.1% compared to 2001. A significant reason for this
segment’s year-over-year decline in revenue is attributable to
the planned exit of approximately $85.0 million of certain
lower-margin contracts as part of the Company’s newly imple-
- mented strategy. The remaining decline is related to softening
demand in both technical services and information technology
sectors, a weakening economy, offshore competition, and pric-
ing pressures particularly within the information technology
sector. Partially offsetting this revenue trend in 2002, was a
strong revenue improvement in the U.K. operations of
AndersElite. AndersElite’s market, professional services in the
construction trades, has remained largely immune to the gen-
eral declines in the U K. staffing market.

11

PS's operating profit was $6.9 million in 2002 compared to an
operating loss of $4.0 million in 2001. Primarily as a result of
aggressive restructuring efforts in 2002, the most significant
factor in this improvement in profitability was a reduction in
operating and administrative expenses of approximately $27.1
million. In addition, improved segment performance was due to
lower restructuring charges in 2002 of $9.1 million. Partially
offsetting these improvements in operating profit was a $25.3
million reduction in gross profit ($34.4 million of the decline
was related to the fall-off in revenue partially offset by a $9.1
million improvement in the gross profit rate). This segment’s
gross profit rate improved 150 basis points on a year-over-year
basis due primarily to having exited very low margin business
during the first half of 2002.

Project Management ("PM")

PM's revenues of $311.3 million in 2002 decreased $40.9 million
or 11.6% compared to 2001. This segment includes the telecom-
munications sector, which experienced significant declines due to
the dramatic issues facing that industry. Excluding the impact of
the telecommunications business fall-off, the PM segment expe-
rienced 5.6% revenue growth year-over-year.

PM's operating profit was $9.4 million in 2002 compared to an
operating loss of $11.0 million in 2001. Several factors con-
tributed to the improvement in 2002 operating profit. The most
significant improvement in profitability was the reduction in
operating and administrative expenses of $20.7 million, pri-
marily as a result of restructuring efforts implemented in early
2002. In addition, reductions in restructuring provisions of $3.1
million further improved the operating results. As a result of the
decline in revenue, this segment’s year-over-year gross profit
declined $3.4 million. This decline is comprised of $9.2 million
related to reduction in revenue, which was substantially offset
by a $5.8 million improvement in gross profit margin. The seg-
ment’s gross profit margin performance improved by 180 basis
points, on a year-over-year basis, due to the segment’s focus on
high-margin value-added business particularly within the phar-
maceuticals and biotechnology sectors.

Todays Staffing (“Todays")

Todays' revenues of $149.4 million in 2002 decreased $44.3
million or 22.9% compared to 2001. Todays' volume of busi-
ness declined steadily throughout 2002 and 2001. Two pri-
mary factors that contributed to Todays' revenue declines are
the softening of the U.S. economy and severe competitive
pressures on pricing that resulted in lost customers. In
response, the Company implemented a restructuring plan in
the third quarter of 2002. This plan was designed to lower
costs while improving Todays’ business model. As a result,
Todays is now more competitive, as evidenced by the improve-
ments in its revenue pattern.




Todays’ operating profit was $1.5 million as compared to $2.6
million in 2001, The restructuring and cost-saving initiatives in
2002 and 20071 resulted in a reduction in operating and
administrative expenses of $13.8 million compared to 2001,
which was partially offset by an increase in restructuring pro-
visions of $3.4 million . These actions resulted in a lower fixed
cost base. These savings were offset by a $11.5 million reduc-
tion in gross profit that was primarily attributable to the rev-
enue decline noted above. Gross profit margins were relatively
comparable year-over-year.

Management Recruiters ("MIRI")

MRI's revenues of $85.9 million in 2002 decreased $17.3 mil-
lion or 16.8% compared to 2001, primarily as the result of a
sluggish economy, which reduced demand for its services.
Approximately 30.0% of this revenue decline is attributable to
the company-owned permanent placement offices that were
sold in the third quarter of 2002. The overall decline in revenue
was experienced in both MRI's company-owned specialty
staffing offices and its franchised locations.

Operating profit in 2002 was $6.9 million as compared to
$12.7 million in 2001. The lower operating profit in 2002 was
primarily due to the reduction in revenues, which were partially
offset by the elimination of goodwill amortization. In 2001,
goodwill amortization was approximately $1.3 million.

Corporate

Corporate expenses totaled $18.0 million in 2002 as compared
to $23.4 million in 2001. The reduction in corporate expenses
resulted from reduced spending on information technology
infrastructure and tighter cost controls. Further, operating and
administrative expenses in 2001 included $3.1 million of event-
driven charges that were primarily attributable to various cor-
porate-controfled investment write-offs.

Results of Operations, year ended December 31, 2001
vs. year ended December 31, 2000

Consclidated Results

The Company recorded consolidated revenues of $1,458.6 mil-
lion in 2001, down $216.9 million or 12.9% as compared to
2000, as each operating segment reported lower revenues. The
continuing economic slowdown in the United States through-
out 2001 adversely affected the staffing industry and was the
primary contributing factor to the decline in revenues.

. Consolidated gross profit of $367.0 million in 2001 was down
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$78.8 million, or 17.7% as compared to 2000. This reduction
was primarily driven by the 12.9% reduction in volume and
deterioration in the consolidated gross profit margin that was
25.2% of revenues in 2001 compared to 26.6% in 2000. This
reduction in the gross profit rate primarily reflected higher
employee costs and a less favorable mix of business as the
economy softened in virtually every operating segment.

Operating and administrative expenses of $368.1 million in
2001 were $24.4 million or 6.2% lower than expenses incurred
in 2000. Contributing to the decrease in operating and admin-
istrative expenses in 2001 were several factors including reduc-
tions related to the decline in sales volume and approximately
$9.1 million of savings from various initiatives implemented
throughout the year. '

As previously stated, the Company instituted a multi-phased Plan
of Restructure in 2001. The first phase of the Plan of Restructure
resulted in a pre-tax charge in 2001 of $22.0 million. The
Company did not conduct similar restructuring activities in 2000,

The operating loss for the year ended 2001 was $23.0 million,
reflecting a $76.4 million decline from 2000. The largest factor
contributing to this decline is directly refated to a $78.8 million
reduction in gross profit resulting from the significant fall-off in
year-over-year revenues noted above. Also contributing to the
loss was the aforementioned restructuring charge of $22.0 mil-
lion, which was offset slightly by volume-related declines in
operating and administrative expenses.

Interest expense of $3.1 million in 2001 declined $2.1 million
or 40.9% from the prior year, due to reduced average borrow-
ings during the year as well as lower interest rates.

The Company's effective income tax rate was 37.5% in 2001
and 38.4% in 2000.

in June 2002, the Company sold the net operating assets of its
subsidiary Modern Engineering, Inc. ("Modern”), which oper-
ated in its PM operating segment. Accordingly, Modern’s activ-
ity is reflected as discontinued operations in the accompanying
financial statements in accordance with the reguirements of
SFAS-144. All enclosed financial statements have been
restated accordingly.




The Company's net loss per share in 2001 was $0.82 compared
to earnings per diluted share of $1.73 in the prior year.
Acquisition activity in 2001 and 2000 was not significant.

Segment Discussion

Professional Services {("PS")

PS" revenues of $809.5 million decreased $102.2 million in
2001 or 11.2% as compared to 2000. This segment experi-
enced lower revenues in 2001 primarily due to softening
demand in both technical services and information technol-
ogy sectors; a weakening economy, off shore competition and
pricing pressures particularly within the information technol-
ogy sector. Virtually all of the segment’s business lines, with
the exception of its AndersElite UK. operations, were
adversely impacted.

The segment reported an operating loss of $4.0 million in 2001
as compared to an operating profit of $20.1 million in 2000.
The most significant factor impacting 2001 operating profit
was the significant decline in year-over-year gross profit of
$18.6 million. This segment’s 2001 results were also adversely
impacted by an $11.6 million charge related to the Plan of
Restructure, partially offset by a reduction in operating and
administrative expenses of $6.1 million, primarily due to reduc-
tions in other charges. The most significant component of such
charges was related to a settlement of a dispute with the
Company's health insurance provider in 2000.

Project Management {"PM")

PM’s revenues of $352.2 million in 2001 decreased $35.8 mil-
lion or 9.2% as compared to 2000. The segment includes the
telecommunications sector, which experienced significant
declines due to the issues facing that industry. Excluding the
decline in its telecommunications business, PM’s revenues in
2001 were flat compared to 2000.

PM'’s operating loss was $11.0 million in 2001 as compared to
an operating profit of $12.6 million in 2000. Government
Services and Innovantage experienced an increase in operating
profit in 2001 as compared to 2000; while the aerospace busi-
ness, the Engineering Group and telecommunications experi-
enced a decline in operating profit, with the latter two
businesses incurring operating losses. The primary factor con-
tributing to the decline in operating profit was related to a
$11.4 million reduction in gross profit (38.3 million of the
decline related to the fall-off in volume and $3.1 million was
attributable to erosion in the gross profit margin). The decline
in the year-over-year gross profit margin was related to a less
favorable mix of business as the economy softened. In addition,
PM incurred $7.1 million of restructuring charges during 2001
(none in 2000) and an increase of $5.1 million in operating and
administrative expenses including event-driven items.
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Todays Staffing (*Todays”)

Todays' revenues of $193.7 million in 2001 decreased $45.2
million or 18.9% as compared to 2000, as the slowing econ-
omy particularly impacted Todays’ administrative staffing busi-
ness. The segment also experienced an unfavorable change in
its business mix.

Todays had an operating profit of $2.6 million in 2001 com-
pared to an operating profit of $15.2 million in 2000. This
decline in operating profit was primarily related to a $14.5 mil-
lion decline in gross profit. Of the $14.5 million decline in gross
profit, approximately $12.8 million was attributable to the
decline in revenue with the balance relating to a 90 basis point
decline in the gross profit margin, which was the result of the
change in its business mix. The balance of the decline is pri-
marily attributable to various restructuring and other charges.

Management Recruiters ("MRIi”)

MRI's revenues of $103.2 million in 2001 decreased $33.6 mil-
lion or 24.6% as compared to 2000 reflecting the slowing
economy and its impact on demand for permanent placement
services. Revenues declined in both MRI-owned and franchised
operations.

This segment’s operating profit was $12.7 million in 2001 as
compared to an operating profit of $30.7 million in 2000.
Operating profit declined by $34.3 million primarily due to the
contraction in revenues, as well as a $1.9 million restructuring
charge in 2001. Partially offsetting these impacts was a $18.2
million reduction in operating and administrative expenses.
This reduction is primarily related to the contraction in year-
over-year revenue.

Corporate

Corporate expenses declined to $23.4 million in 2001as com-
pared to $25.3 million in 2000. The reduction in corporate
expenses resulted from reduced spending on information tech-
nology infrastructure and tighter cost controls.

Inflation

PS, PM and Todays segments’ services are priced generally
based on mark-ups on prevailing rates of pay, and as a result
are able to generally maintain their relationship to direct labor
costs. MRt's search services are priced as a function of salary lev-
els of the job candidates. In 2001, employee benefit costs, pri-
marily health care costs, rose due to an increase in the
Company’'s health insurance premiums. After the significant
rise in insurance costs during 20017, the Company implemented
a plan to reduce these costs through higher co-pays and pric-
ing adjustments during 2002. This strategy allowed the
Company to offset a portion of these costs. The Company is
continuing to review its options to further reduce these costs,
which the Company does not believe are representative of gen-
eral inflationary trends. Otherwise, inflation has not been a
meaningful factor in the Company’s operations.




Liquidity and Capital Resources

The total cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments at
December 31, 2002 were approximately $94.0 million
(adjusted for outstanding checks of $6.0 million), which is a
$77.7 million increase over 2001. In addition, the Company
reduced its debt by $7.4 million and eliminated all bank bor-
rowings. CDI feels that this source of cash is more than ade-
guate to support growth opportunities. Furthermore, the
favorable cash position has allowed the Company to terminate
its $75.0 million credit agreement with a syndicate of banks
that was due to expire on March 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had approximately $41.1
million in cash and cash equivalents and approximately $58.5
million of additional funds invested in short-term investments.
In 2002, the Company generated $83.9 million in cash from
operating activities, a decrease of $15.0 million when com-
pared to 2001. The largest component of change was in
accounts receivable, resulting from both revenue declines and
collection activities.

The Company’s main asset is its accounts receivable of $189.6
million or approximately 44% of total assets at the end of
2002. Receivables decreased $63.2 million or 25.0% over
2001. CDI's days sales outstanding cycle was at 58 days, a
decrease of 2 days over 2001.

In 2002, cash used in investing activities was $70.4 million. This
activity includes the purchase of $58.5 million of short-term
investments. Excluding short-term investments, investing activ-
ities in 2002 were $11.9 million as compared to $29.2 million
in 2001. The reduction of $17.3 million in investing activities
was primarily from decreases in investments in fixed assets and
acquisitions. Acquisition activity in 2002 related to the purchase
of the minority interest in a subsidiary.

During 2001, the Company liguidated all of its bank borrow-
ings by eliminating $55.5 million of long-term debt. As a result,
cash used in financing activities declined $49.8 million to $7.4
million in 2002. Financing activities during 2002 represents full
repayment of $4.7 million relating to a loan note from a prior
acquisition and $2.7 million of payments on other debt.

Summarized below are the Company’s obligations and commit-
ments to make future payments under lease agreements and
debt obligations as of year-end 2002:

Less than 1-3 3-5  More than
Total 1 year years years 5 years
Operating leases  $43,650 $13,149 $19,255 §$5,619 § 5,627
Short-term
borrowings 480 480 - - -
Total $44,130 $13,629 $19,255 35619 $ 5,627
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Critical Accounting Policies

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, which requires man-
agement to make subjective decisions, assessments, and esti-
mates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.
As the number of variables and assumptions affecting the judg-
ments increases, such judgments become even more subjective.
While management believes that its assumptions are both rea-
sonable and appropriate, actual results may be materially dif-
ferent than estimated. The Company has identified certain
critical accounting policies, described below, that are the most
susceptible to judgment.

Accounting for Impairment of Goodwill

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. Accordingly, the
Company discontinued amortizing goodwill and began apply-
ing the specific guidance contained in that Statement to evalu-
ate the carrying value and recoverability of its goodwill by
evaluating the fair market value of the reporting units within
which goodwill resides. The process of estimating fair value, in
part, relies on the use of forecasts to estimate future cash flows
expected from a reporting unit. The estimation of future cash
flows, based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections, requires management’s subjective judgments. The
time periods for estimating future cash flows are lengthy, which
increases the risk that actual future results could significantly
deviate from estimates. As of December 31, 2001, the
Company had net goodwill of $87.5 million of which, $21.4
million was impaired and written off as of January 1, 2002. The
valuations for certain reporting units of the Company were sub-
stantially in excess of the carrying value of their respective net
assets including goodwill. However, the valuations for certain
other units were more closely aligned to the carrying value of
their respective net assets, which includes goodwill. Changes in
future market conditions, the Company’s strategy, or other fac-
tors could impact upon the future values of these reporting
units, which could result in future impairment charges.

Accounting for Income Taxes

In establishing the provision for income taxes and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities, and valuation allowances
against deferred tax assets, the Company makes judgments
and interpretations based on enacted tax laws, published tax
guidance, as well as estimates of future earnings. As of
December 31, 2002, the Company has total net deferred tax
assets of $24.9 million. This includes $4.3 million, which relates
primarily to state net operating loss carry forwards, capital loss
carry forwards, and other miscellaneous credits. Realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the likelihcod that future
taxable income will be sufficient to realize these benefits over
time, and the effectiveness of tax planning strategies in the rel-
evant tax jurisdictions. In the event that actual results differ
from these estimates and assessments, additional valuation
allowances may be required.




Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

When determining the allowance reserves for potentially uncol-
lectible accounts receivable, the Company must apply judg-
ment. Such judgments include assessments about changes in
economic conditions, concentration of receivables among
clients and industries, recent write-off trends, rates of
bankruptcy, credit quality of specific customers, and risks
related to the exiting of lower-margin customer contracts. As a
result of deteriorating economic conditions, large customer
mergers and other factors, the Company’s allowance reserves
have increased as a percent of receivables and sales over the
past few years. At December 31, 2002, this reserve was $7.7
million or 3.9% of gross accounts receivable. Unanticipated
changes in the financial condition of customers, the resolution
of various disputes, or significant changes in the economy
could impact the reserves required.

Accounting for Stock Options

The Company has used stock options to attract, retain, and
reward employees for long-term service. Generally accepted
accounting principles allow alternative methods of accounting
for these awards. The Company has chosen to account for its
stock plans (including stock option plans) under APB Opinion
25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. Since option
exercise prices reflect the market value per share of the
Company’s stock upon grant, no compensation expense related
to stock options is reflected in the Company's income state-
ment. SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”,
prescribes the alternative method of accounting for stock
options. Had SFAS 123 been adopted, the Company would
have recorded additional pre-tax costs of approximately $1.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The pro-forma
compensation cost was calculated using the Black-Scholes
Options Pricing Model, which includes estimates based on
assumptions for the risk-free interest rate, life of options and
stock price volatility. Changes in the underlying assumptions
could impact the pro-forma compensation cost.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 146 (SFAS
146) "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”, which supersedes EITF No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employees Termination Benefits and
Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred
in @ Restructuring)”. SFAS 146 requires companies to recognize
costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are
incurred, rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or
disposal plan as required by EITF No. 94-3. SFAS 146 is effective
for restructuring activities initiated after December 31, 2002.
This Statement does not require companies to adjust restruc-
turing reserves recorded before 2003. The Company will apply
SFAS 146 to future restructurings, if applicable. Currently, there
is no intention to initiate such action. Refer to Forward Looking
Statements below.
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In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 148
(SFAS 148) "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure—an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 123". ' This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123;
" Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alter-
native methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclo-
sure requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent dis-
closures in both annual and interim financial statements about
the method of accounting for stock-based employee compen-
sation and the effect of the method used on reported results.
Refer to Note 1 of CDI's annual financial statements for addi-
tional disclosures related to stock-based compensation. The
transition provisions of SFAS 148 are effective for years begin-
ning after December 15, 2002. The Company is currently
assessing the potential impact this Statement may have on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations should it
elect to apply the transition provisions of this Statement.

Effective December 15, 2002, the Company adopted FIN No.
45 "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others.” This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be
made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial state-
ments about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has
issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of
the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The
Company has assessed this Interpretation and has provided the
necessary disclosures in Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Forward Looking Statements

The Company’s growth prospects are influenced by broad eco-
nomic trends. The pace of customer capital spending programs,
new product launches and similar activities have a direct impact
on the need for temporary and permanent employees. Should
the U.S. economy decline during 2003, the Company's operat-
ing performance could be adversely impacted. The Company
believes that its Plan of Restructure and strategic focus on tar-
geted vertical market sectors provides some insulation from
adverse trends. However, significant declines in the economy
could result in the need for future cost reductions or changes
in strategy.

Additionally, changes in government regulations could result
in prohibition or restriction of certain types of employment

services or the imposition of new or additional benefits,

licensing or tax requirements with respect to the provision of
employment services that may reduce CDI's future earnings.
There can be no assurance that CDI will be able to increase




the fees charged to its clients in a timely manner and in a suf-
ficient amount to cover increased costs as a result of any of
the foregoing.

The staffing services market is highly competitive with limited
barriers to entry. CDI competes in global, national, regional and
local markets with numerous temporary staffing and perma-
nent placement companies. Price competition in the staffing
industry is significant, particularly for the provision of office
clerical and light industrial personnel, and pricing pressures
from competitors and customers are increasing. CDI expects
that the level of competition will remain high in the future,
which could limit CDI's ability to maintain or increase its market
share or profitability.

Certain information in this report, including Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, contains forward-looking statements as such term
is defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Certain
forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of for-
ward-looking terminology such as, “believes”, “expects,”

may,” “will,” “should,” "seeks,” “approximately,” "intends,”
“plans,” “estimates,” or “anticipates” or the negative thereof
or other comparable terminology, or by discussions of strategy,
plans or intentions. Forward-lnoking statements involve risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ mate-
rially from those in the forward-looking statements. These
include risks and uncertainties such as competitive market pres-
sures, material changes in demand from larger customers,
availability of labor, the Company’s performance on contracts,
changes in customers' attitudes toward outsourcing, govern-
ment policies or judicial decisions adverse to the staffing indus-
try, changes in economic conditions and delays or unexpected
costs associated with implemeritation of the Company’s Plan of
Restructure. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of
the date hereof. The C‘ompany assumes no obligation to
update such information.

" [t "o "on
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jitative Disclosures -

The Company is exposed to risks associated with foreign cur-
rency fluctuations and changes in interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to foreign currency fluctuations relates to
its operations in foreign countries conducted through sub-
sidiaries operating primarily in the United Kingdom and
Canada. Exchange rate fluctuations impact the U. S. dollar
value of reported earnings derived from these foreign opera-
tions as well as the carrying value of the Company’s invest-
ment in the net assets related to these operations. The
Company generally does not engage in hedging activities with
respect to foreign operations except for isolated situations
involving inter-company payments that have not been mate-
rial. The effects of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations
have been immaterial.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate changes is not signifi-
cant. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no bank
borrowings and only immaterial amounts of other debt out-
standing, none of which was variable rate debt. The Company’s
investment in money market and other short-term instruments
are primarily at variable rates.



Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Revenues $ 1,169,475 1,458,592 1,675,455
Cost of services 864,682 1,091,575 1,229,616
Gross profit 304,793 367,017 445,839
Operating and administrative expenses 284,282 368,086 392,500
Provision for restructure 12,551 21,958 -
Loss on the sale of assets 1,259 - -
Operating profit (loss) 6,701 (23,027) 53,339
Interest (income) expense, net {115) 3,065 5,189
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before

income taxes, minority interests and cumulative

effect of accounting change 6,816 (26,092) 48,150
Income tax (expense) benefit (2,599) 9,794 (18,467)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before

minority interests and cumulative effect of

accounting change 4,217 (16,298) . 29,683
Minority interests 135 406 872
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before

cumulative effect of accounting change 4,082 (16,704) 28,811
Discontinued operations 527 1,094 4,192
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (13,968) -
Net (loss) earnings $ (9,359) (15,610) 33,003
Basic (loss) earnings per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.21 (0.88) 1.51

Discontinued operations $ 0.03 0.06 0.22

Cumulative effect of accounting change $ {0.73) - -

Net (loss) earnings $ (0.49) {0.82) 1.73
Diluted (loss) earnings per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.21 (0.88) 1.51

Discontinued operations $ 0.03 0.06 0.22

Cumulative effect of accounting change $ (0.71) - -

Net (loss) earnings $ (0.48) (0.82) 1.73

See accompanying notes to cansolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

(In thousands, except share data) 2002 2001
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,148 26,255
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $7,683 - 2002; $8,162 - 2001 189,557 252,721
Short-term investments 58,477 . -
Prepaid expenses 6,403 6,577
Income taxes receivable 6,101 -
Deferred income taxes 13,195 16,786
Assets of discontinued operations - 14,840
Total current assets 314,881 317,179
Fixed assets, net 29,134 49,989
Deferred income taxes 11,750 5,709
Goodwill, net 68,334 87,469
Other assets 8,675 12,226
$ 432,774 472,572
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Obligations not liquidated because of outstanding checks $ 5,978 10,304
Accounts payable 25,008 29,684
Withheld payroll taxes 2,773 5,597
Accrued compensation and related costs 52,914 46,008
Other accrued expenses ' 29,328 42,620
Income taxes payable - 2,512
Current portion of long-term debt 480 7,913
Liabilities of discontinued operations - 3,513
Total current liabilities 116,481 148,151
Deferred compensation 8,492 12,396
Minority interests - 1,375
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $.10 par value - authorized
1,000,000 shares; none issued - -
Common stock, $.10 par value - authorized
100,000,000 shares; issued 20,313,915
shares — 2002; 20,078,972 shares - 2001 2,031 2,008
Class B common stock, $.10 par value -
authorized 3,174,891 shares; none issued - -
Additional paid-in capital 22,975 17,629
Retained earnings 306,339 315,698
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {610) (2,038)
Unamortized value of restricted stock issued (800) (690)
Less common stock in treasury, at cost -
958,465 shares - 2002; 950,502 shares - 2001 (22,134) (21,957)
Total shareholders’ equity 307,801 310,650
$ 432,774 472,572

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Continuing Operations
Operating activities:
Net (Joss) earnings (9,359) (15,610) 33,003
Net income from discontinued operations (527) (1,094) (4,192)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 13,968 - -
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 4,082 (16,704) 28,811
Minority interests 135 406 872
Depreciation 24,457 21,926 17,661
Amortization of goodwill - 5,706 5,518
Non-cash provision for restructure expenses 8,530 21,409 -
Loss on sale of assets 1,259 - -
Income tax (expense) benefit less tax payments (612) (22,150) (920)
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 62,233 103,479 (22,450)
(Decrease) increase in payables and accrued expenses (18,086) (18,381) 22,673
Other 1,852 3,145 (1,349)
83,850 898,836 50,816
Investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (10,144) (19,112) (29,792)
Purchases of short-term investments (58,477) - -
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired {4,146) (11,806) (11,677)
Other 2,415 1,742 (1,517)
(70,352) (29,176) (42,986)
Financing activities:
Borrowings on long-term debt - 10,581 37,661
Payments on long-term debt (7.433) (55,530) (53,689)
Cbligations not liquidated because of outstanding checks (4,326) (12,264) 1,354
Proceeds from stock plans 4,476 - 231
Other (158) 4 (60)
(7,441) (57,209) (14,503)
Net cash flows from continuing operations 6,057 12,451 (6,673)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations 8,836 2,372 6,676
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 14,893 14,823 3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 26,255 11,432 11,429
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 41,148 26,255 11,432

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholder's Equity

Years ended December 31,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Common stock
Beginning of year 2,008 2,002 2,000
Exercise of stock options 18 - 2
Restricted stock issued 1 5 -
Stock purchase plans 4 1 -
End of year 2,031 2,008 2,002
Additional paid-in capital
Beginning of year 17,629 16,677 16,539
Exercise of stock options 4,069 57 250
Restricted stock-issued 338 698 -
Restricted stock-vesting/forfeiture 5 (83) (35)
Restricted stock-change in value 14 8 (147)
Stock purchase plans 920 272 70
End of year 22,975 17,629 16,677
Retained earnings
Beginning of year 315,698 331,308 298,305
Net (loss) earnings (9,359) (15,610) 33,003
End of year 306,339 315,698 331,308
Accumulated other compreherisive loss
Beginning of year (2,038) (1,999) (611)
Translation adjustment 1,428 (582) (845)
Unrealized loss on investment - 543 (543)
End of year (610) (2,038) (1,999)
Unamortized value of restricted stock issued
Beginning of year (630) (230) (945)
Restricted stock-issued (339) (702) -
Restricted stock-vesting/forfeiture 45 23 479
Restricted stock-change in value (14) (8) 147
Restricted stock-amortization of value 198 227 89
End of year (800) (690) (230)
Treasury stock
Beginning of year (21,957) (21,963) (21,444)
Restricted stock issued - 29 -
Exercise of stock options - - (40)
Restricted stock-forfeiture (45) (23) 479
Shares repurchased (132) - -
End of year (22,134) (21,957) (21,963)
Comprehensive (loss) income
Net (loss) earnings (9,359) (15,610) 33,003
Translation adjustment 1,428 (582) (845)
Unrealized loss on investment - 543 (543)
(7,931} (15,649) 31,615




Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands, except shares, per share data and ratios)

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of CDI Corp. ("CDI” or the
“Company”) and all wholly-owned and majority-owned sub-
sidiaries after elimination of inter-company balances and
transactions.

For comparative purposes, prior period financial statements
have been restated to reflect Emerging Issues Task Force
Consensus No. 01-14 “Income Statement Characterization of
Reimbursement Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses
Incurred”. In connection with the implementation of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, the Company
has reflected the results of its former subsidiary, Modern
Engineering, Inc., as a discontinued operation in the accompa-
nying financial statements.

Use of Estimates and Uncertainties - The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contin-
gent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

The Company can be affected by a variety of factors including
uncertainty relating to the performance of the U.S. economy,
competition, demand for the Company's services, adverse lit-
igation and claims and the hiring, training and retention of
key employees.

Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments - Cash equiv-
alents include investments in highly liquid securities that have a
maturity within 90 days from their date of acquisition. Short-
term investments include investments with an original maturity
date greater than 90 days. All the Company’s cash equivalents
and short-term investments represent investments in money mar-
ket instruments or debt securities. Short-term investments
include securities classified as available-for-sale, as well as a secu-
rity classified as held-to-maturity in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Cer-
tain investments in Debt and Equity Instruments”.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value based on
quoted prices. Cost of securities available-for-sale is adjusted
for amortization of premiums or discounts to maturity. Interest
income and amortization of premiums and discounts are
included in interest (income) expense. Cost of securities sold is
based on the specific identification method. Gains and losses
related to available-for-sale securities have been immaterial.
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The held-to-maturity investment was purchased during 2002
and is one of which the Company has the intent to hold the
investment until its maturity. The investment is carried at cost
that equals fair value and was purchased at par. Interest income
is included in interest (income) expense.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The Company's carry-
ing value of financial instruments approximates fair value
because of the nature and characteristics of its financial instru-
ments. The Company does not have any off-balance sheet
financial instruments. The Company does not generally have
derivative products in place to manage risks related to foreign
currency fluctuations for its foreign operations or for interest
rate changes.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - An allowance is provided
against accounts receivable that are not expected to be collected.
This reserve is based upon historical experience, as well as esti-
mates based on Management's judgments in specific matters.

Fixed Assets - Fixed assets are stated at cost and are depreci-
ated over their estimated useful lives, principally by the straight-
line method. Estimated useful lives range from 3 to 7 years for
computers and systems and 5 to 7 years for equipment and
furniture. Generally, leasehold improvements are amortized
over the life of the lease.

Goeodwill - Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 -
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. Accordingly, the
Company ceased amortizing goodwill effective January 1,
2002; tested goodwill carried in its balance sheet as of January
1, 2002 for impairment; and will test for impairment at least
annually thereafter. A portion of the goodwilf carried in the
Company’s balance sheet as of January 1, 2002 was impaired
and has been written off. In accordance with the transition pro-
visions of SFAS 142, the write-off of this goodwill, net of
income tax benefit, is reflected as a change in accounting as of
January 1, 2002 and is presented in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings as such. See note 7 for additional dis-
closures related to goodwill.

Long-Lived Assets - Effective January 1, 2002, the Company
also adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
144 -" Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” . The Company evaluates long-lived assets and intangi-
ble assets with definite lives for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. When it is probable that
undiscounted future cash flows will not be sufficient to recover
an asset’s carrying amount, the asset is written down to its fair
value. Assets to be disposed of by sale, if any, are reported at
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.
See note 13 for additional disctosures related to the disposat of
long-lived assets reflected as discontinued operations in the
accompanying financial statements.




Obligations Net Liguidated Because of Outstanding
Checks - The Company manages its levels of cash in banks to
minimize its cash balances. Cash balances as reflected by banks
are higher than the Company’s book balances because of
checks that are outstanding throughout the banking system.
Cash is generally not provided to bank accounts until checks
are presented for payment. The differences in balances created
by the outstanding checks result in negative cash balances in
the Company’s records. These negative balances are reflected in
current liabilities as Obligations Not Liquidated Because of
Qutstanding Checks.

Revenue Recognition - The Company derives its revenues
from several sources. All of the Company's segments perform
staffing services. The Company’s PM segment also performs
project and outsourcing services, which may involve fixed-price
contracts. MRI derives the majority of its revenue from initial
franchise fees, permanent placement fees and continuing
franchise royalties.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company implemented
Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus No. 01-14 “Income
Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for
'‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred” (the “Consensus”). The
Consensus requires that certain reimbursable costs incurred
and re-billed to customers be included in both revenues and
cost of services, rather than “netting” these amounts in rev-
enues. The effect of the Consensus was to increase revenues
and cost of services by $31,494, $54,806 and $63,869 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. All financial statements
presented in this document have been reclassified to conform
to this Consensus.

Staffing Services - Revenues derived from staffing services
are recorded on a gross basis as services are performed and
associated costs have been incurred using employees of the
‘Company. In these circumstances, the Company assumes
the risk of acceptability of its employees to its customers. In
certain cases, the Company may utilize other companies
and their employees to fulfill customer reguirements. In
these cases the Company receives an administrative fee for
arranging for, billing for and collecting the billings related to
these companies. The customer is typically responsible for
assessing the work of these companies who have responsi-
bility for the acceptability of their personnel to the customer.
The Company reflects revenues derived from this relation-
ship net of associated costs.
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Project and Qutsourcing Services — These services are gener-
ally provided on a cost-plus-fixed-fee or time-and-material
basis. Typically, a customer will outsource a discrete project
or activity and the Company assumes responsibility for per-
formance of the function or project. The Company recog-
nizes revenues and associated costs on a gross basis as
services are performed and costs are incurred using its
employees. In instances where these services are provided
on a fixed-price basis, the Company recognizes revenues
using the percentage-of-completion method, and periodi-
cally evaluates the need to provide for any losses on these
projects. Fixed price contracts comprised approximately 4%
of consolidated revenues in 2002.

Initial Franchise Fees - Fees related to sales of new franchises
are deferred until the franchise commences operations, at
which time the Company has substantially fulfilled its
requirements under the franchise agreement.

Permanent Placement Fees and Continuing Franchise
Royalties — The Company earns permanent placement fees
from its company-owned operations and royalties from its
franchisees. Fees for contingent searches are recognized at
the time the candidate commences employment. For
retained searches, where the Company or the franchisee
receives a fee for specific services rendered, such revenues
are recognized as the related services are rendered.
Revenues associated with Company-owned operations are
recorded on a gross basis and royalties from franchisees are
recorded on a net basis as a component of revenue.

Stock-Based Compensation - The Company uses the intrinsic
value method of accounting for stock options and other forms
of stock-based compensation granted to employees and direc-
tors, in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. No com-
pensation cost has been recognized for grants of stock options
because option exercise prices are not less than the fair market
value of the underlying common stock at dates of grant.
Compensation cost has been recognized for restricted stock
issued and for units granted under the Stock Purchase Plan and
Stock Unit Plan.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”, uses a fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based compensation.
The following table reflects the pro-forma effect on net (loss)
earnings and (loss) earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 if the Company had
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123:




2002 2001 2000

Net {loss) earnings,

as reported $ (9,359) (15,610) 33,003
Stock-based employee and

director compensation cost

included in reported net

(loss) earnings, net of income

tax effect 1,083 647 460
Stock-based employee and

director compensation cost

under fair value-based method,

net of income tax effect (2,199) (2,269) (1,959)
Pro-forma net (loss) earnings $ (10,475) (17,232) 31,504
Net (loss) earnings per share:
Basic - as reported $  (0.49) (0.82) 1.73
Basic - pro-forma $  (0.59) (0.90) 1.65
Diluted - as reported $  (0.48) (0.82) 1.73
Diluted - pro-forma $ (0.54) (0.90) 1.65

Pro-forma net (loss) earnings for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 have been revised from those previously
reported to give effect to impact that cancellations of stock
options would have had on costs if SFAS 123 had been adopted.

The pro-forma compensation cost using the fair value-based
method under SFAS No. 123 includes valuations related to
stock options granted since January 1, 1995 using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model. The weighted average fair value
of options granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000 has been esti-
mated using the following assumptions:

2002 2001 2000
Risk-free interest rate 4.72% 4.84% 6.43%
Expected life of option 7 years 10 years 10 years
Expected stock price volatility 36% 40% 46%

Expected dividend yield - - -

Per Share Data - Earnings {loss) used to calculate both basic and
diluted earnings (loss) per share for all periods are the reported
earnings (loss) in the Company's consolidated statement of
earnings. Because of the Company's capital structure, all
reported earnings (loss) pertain to common shareholders and
no assumed adjustments are necessary.
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The number of common shares used to calculate basic and
diluted earnings per share for 2002, 2001 and 2000 was deter-
mined as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Basic:
Average shares outstanding 19,254,504 19,086,755 19,073,267
Restricted shares issued
not vested (46,031) (10,000) (29,795)
19,208,473 19,076,755 19,043,472
Diluted:
Shares used for basic 19,208,473 19,076,755 19,043,472
Dilutive effect of stock options 264,636 - 7,757
Dilutive effect of units under the
Stock Purchase Plan 91,183 - 52,183
Dilutive effect of restricted shares
issued not vested 14,586 - 1,020
19,578,878 19,076,755 19,104,432

In 2001 only, basic and diluted shares are the same because
including the effect of common stock equivalents such as
stock options, units under the Company’s Stock Purchase Plan
and restricted shares issued but not yet vested would have
been antidilutive.

Income Taxes - The Company accounts for income taxes in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes”, which requires an
asset and liability approach of accounting for income taxes.
SFAS 109 requires assessment of the likelihood of realizing
benefits associated with deferred tax assets for purposes of
determining whether a valuation allowance is needed for such
deferred tax assets. The Company and its wholly-owned U.S.
subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return.

Foreign Currency Translation - Foreign subsidiaries of the
Company use local currency as the functional currency. Net
assets are translated at year-end rates while revenues and
expenses are translated at average exchange rates.
Adjustments resulting from these translations are reflected in
accumulated other comprehensive loss in shareholders’ equity.
Gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions are
reflected in the consolidated statements of (loss) earnings.

Comprehensive Income - Comprehensive {loss) income con-
sists of net earnings, foreign currency translation adjustments
and adjustments related to an equity investment which was
classified as an available-for-sale security.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 146 (SFAS
146) - "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”, which supersedes EITF No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employees Termination Benefits and




Other Costs to Exit and Activity (including Certain Costs
incurred in a Restructuring)”. SFAS 146 requires companies to
recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when
they are incurred, rather than at the date of a commitment to
an exit or disposal plan as required by EITF No. 94-3. SFAS 146
is effective for restructuring activities initiated after December
31, 2002. This Statement does not require companies to adjust
restructuring reserves recorded before 2003. The Company will
apply SFAS 146 to future restructurings, if applicable. Currently,
there is no intention to initiate such action.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards board

issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 148
(SFAS 148) - "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure—an amendment of FASB Statement

No. 123". This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123;

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alter-
native methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclo-
sure requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent dis-
closures in both annual and interim financial statements about
the method of accounting for stock-based employee compen-
sation and the effect of the method used on reported results.
For additional disclosures related to stock-based compensation
see the discussion above and Note 11 — Stock Based Plans. The
transition provisions of SFAS 148 are effective for years begin-
ning after December 15, 2002. The Company is currently
assessing the potential impact this Statement may have on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations should it
elect to apply the transition provisions of this Statement.

Effective December 15, 2002, the Company adopted FIN No.
45 "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others.” This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be
made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial state-
ments about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has
issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of
the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The
Company has assessed this Interpretation and has provided the
necessary disclosures in Note 16 — Leases.
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Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term
Investments

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 were comprised of the following:

2002 2001
Cash $ 12,659 8,155
Cash equivalents 28,489 18,100
$ 41,148 26,255
Short-term investments:
Available-for-sale $ 43,252
Held-to-maturity 15,225
$ 58,477

All the Company’s short-term investments originated during
2002 as a result of continuing strong cash flow during the
year. These investments are in very liquid, high guality debt
securities with diversification among the investments based
upon established guidelines. Amortized cost approximates fair
value. Gains and losses during 2002 were immaterial and there
were no transfers of investments between classifications of
short-term investments.

All of the Company's available-for-sale securities reflect
investments in corporate bonds, various government agencies
and commercial paper. The Company's held-to-maturity
investment is a certificate of deposit, which had a one-year
maturity when purchased.

Contractual maturities of available-for-sale securities as of
December 31, 2002 of $13,511 were for securities maturing in
one year or less and $29,487 for securities maturing in one to
four years.

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable

The Company's principal asset is accounts receivable.
Substantially all of the Company’s customers are provided trade
credit. The primary users of the Company's services are large
industrial organizations, many of which are Fortune 1000 com-
panies. The provision for doubtful accounts was $3,246 in
2002, $9,436 in 2001 and $3,863 in 2000.

Significant portions of the Company’s revenue base and receiv-
ables are concentrated in certain industries. At December 31,
2002 and 2001, receivables from customers in the electron-
ics/information processing industries comprised approximately
15% and 20%, respectively, of consolidated receivables, receiv-
ables from customers in the aircraft/aerospace industries com-
prised approximately 10% and 10%, respectively, of
consolidated receivables and customers in the chemicals/phar-
maceuticals industry comprised approximately 15% and 10%,
respectively, of consolidated receivables.




Note 4 - Note Receivable from Officer

In March of 2002, the Company advanced $1,800 to its
President and Chief Executive Officer in conjunction with his
relocation. The ioan was repayable no later than July 31, 2002,
bore interest at the prime rate, and was collateralized by the
Executive's former residence. The loan and related accrued
interest was repaid in July of 2002,

Note 5 - Acquisitions .
Investments in businesses acquired totaled $4,146, $6,333 and
$9,265 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. All acquisitions were accounted for using
the purchase method. For 2002, assets of $2,636 were
acquired, all of which was goodwill. The remaining $1,510 paid
in 2002, was to acquire the interest of all remaining minority
shareholders. For 2001, assets of $4,451 were acquired (includ-
ing goodwill of $4,180) along with liabilities of $293. A portion
of the investment in 2001 reduced minority interest by $2,175.
For 2000, assets of $8,297 were acquired (including goodwill
of $6,825) along with liabilities of $46. A portion of the invest-
ment in 2000 reduced minority interests by $1,014.

Certain payments for investments in businesses in earlier years
were made in a year following the year in which the acquisition
occurred. Cash used in investing activities in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows reflects the year in which the cash
outiay occurred.

Financial results of the acquired operations are reflected in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings from dates
of acquisition. The acguisitions did not have a significant effect
on reported earnings in the year of acquisition, and earnings
would not have been significantly different from reported earn-
ings had the acquisitions occurred at the beginning of the
respective years.

Note 6 - Fixed Assets
Fixed assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were comprised
of the following:

2002 2001

Computers and systems $ 75,815 97,545
Equipment and furniture 27,213 30,382
Leasehold irnpfovements 12,082 12,207
115,110 140,134
Accumulated depreciation (85,976) (90,145)
$ 29,134 49,989
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Note 7- Goodwill

The adoption of SFAS 142 required testing as of January 1,
2002 to evaluate the recoverability of goodwill carried in the
Company’s balance sheet as of that date. The valuations indi-
cated that goodwill pertaining to certain units was impaired.
The Company used current and projected earnings, cash flows
and comparable market data to determine the fair market value
of each unit. The impairment was based on the lower of the
carrying cost of the underlying net assets -vs.- their fair market
value. Testing for impairment of goodwill prior to January 1,
2002 was based upon undiscounted cash flows from the
related assets compared to the fair value approach required
under SFAS 142.

Impairment charges related to the adoption of SFAS 142 for
the write-off of goodwill of $21,401 (PS - $15,007; PM -
$164; MRI - $6,230) or $13,968 after income tax effect, have
been recorded and are presented in the Company's
Consolidated Statements of Earnings as the cumulative effect
of a change in accounting.

Required annual testing under SFAS 142 was conducted as of
July 1, 2002. The results of this testing indicated no further
impairment to goodwill,



Under SFAS 142, amortization of goodwill ceased January 1, 2002. The following table compares earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before cumulative effect of accounting change, discontinued operations and net (loss) earnings (as well as per share
amounts) for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, as if SFAS 142 had been if effect for 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000

Earnings (loss) from continuirig operations before

cumulative effect of accounting change:

Reported (16,704)
Add goodwill amortization, after tax 4,377
As adjusted (12,327)

Discontinued operations:
Reported 1,094 4,192
Add goodwill amortization, after tax ’ 31 30
As adjusted 1,125 4,222

Net (loss) earnings:
Reported (2.359) (15,610) 33,003
Add goodwill amortization, after-tax - 4,408 4,230
As adjusted (9.359) (11,202) 37,233

Basic (loss) earnings per share:

Continuing operations - Reported $ 0.21 (0.88) 1.51
Continuing operations - As adjusted $ 0.21 (0.65) 1.73
Discontinued operations - Reported $ 0.03 0.06 0.22
Discontinued operations - As adjusted $ 0.03 0.06 0.22
Net (loss) earnings - Reported $ (0.49) (0.82) 1.73
Net (loss) earnings - As adjusted $ (0.49) (0.59) 1.96

Diluted (foss) earnings per share:

Continuing operations - Reperted $ 0.21 (0.88) 1.51
Continuing operations - As adjusted $ 0.21 (0.65) 1.73
Discontinued operations - Reported ' 3 0.03 0.06 0.22
Discontinued operations - As adjusted $ 0.03 0.06 0.22
Net (loss) earnings - Reported $ (0.48) (0.82) 1.73
Net (loss) earnings - As adjusted $ (0.48) (0.59) 1.95

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2002 were as follows:

Professional Project Management Todays
Services Management Recruiters Staffing Total
Balance at December 31, 2001 $ 33,220 14,526 16,199 23,524 87,469
Purchase of minority shareholder interests 2,636 - - - 2,636
Write-off of goodwill for impairment (15,007) (164) (6,230) - (21,401)
Other (235) - (135) - (370)
Balance at December 31, 2002 $ 20,614 14,362 9,834 23,524 68,334
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Note 8 - Debt

The Company generated sufficient cash flow in 2001 that per-
mitted it to repay all borrowings from banks. Strong cash flow
continued throughout 2002 and, as a result, there was no out-
standing bank borrowings during 2002. Effective January 3,
2003 the Company terminated its unsecured revolving credit
agreement with a syndicate of banks that permitted borrow-
ings of up to $75.0 million. This agreement was scheduled to
end March 31, 2003.

As of December 31, 2002, debt outstanding of $480 was for
the purchase of computers and systems that will mature during
2003.

the Plan of Restructure resulted in charges of $21,958 in the
fourth quarter of 2001 and $4,053 and $8,498 in the first and
third quarters of 2002, respectively. The 2001 charges related
to the decommissioning of the Company’s former enterprise
resource planning system, the closing of 25 regional offices and
termination of approximately 350 employees. The 2002
charges related to the closing of approximately 75 field offices
and the termination of approximately 220 employees.

The breakdown of the restructuring charges among operating
segments were as follows:

2002 2001

Professional Services $ 2,492 11,567

Note 9 - Provision for Restructure Project Management 3,978 7.069

During 2002, the Company continued to execute the multi-  management Recruiters 1,595 1,936

phased Plan of Restructure adopted by CDI's Board of Directors  Todays Staffing 3,861 596

in December 2001, and as planned, took additional actions  Corporate 625 790

during the first and third quarters of 2002. Implementation of $ 12,551 21,958
Details of the restructuring charges for 2001 and 2002 were outlined below:

Net Accrual at Net Accrual at

December 31, New Reduction Cash December 31,

2000 Provision of Assets Expenditures 2001

Asset impairments $ - 13,763 (13,763) - -

Provision for severance - 4,716 - (717) 3,999

Provisions for termination of operating leases - 3,479 - - 3,479

$ - 21,958 (13,763) (717) 7.478

Net Accrual at ) Net Accrual at

December 31, New Reduction Cash December 31,

2001 Provision of Assets Expenditures 2002

Asset impairments $ - 3,217 (3,217) - -

Provision for severance 3,999 3,479 - (4,118) 3,360

Provisions for termination of operating leases 3,479 5,855 - (3,795) 5,539

$ 7,478 12,551 (3.217) (7,913) 8,899

The provision for severance in 2002 includes a credit of $730 for the reversal of excess severance provisions recorded in 2001.

The Company anticipates that the remaining liability for operating leases will be substantially paid by December 31, 2005. The
remaining liability for severance will be paid in 2003. It is Management’s intent to liquidate its remaining lease obligations as
soon as possible, The accrual for the provision for restructure is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets.
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Note 10 - Capital Stock

Stock Classification - Common stock and Class 8 common
stock have equal rights except that dividends (other than stock
dividends) may be declared and paid on common stock in
excess of amounts declared and paid on Class B common stock.
Class B common stock is convartible on a share-for-share basis
intc common stock. Class B shares so converted are then can-
celled. At December 31, 200Z and 2001 no Class B common
shares were issued.

Restricted Common Stock - The Company issued shares of-

restricted common stock that vest with the passage of time
(ranging from two to five years) and based on the percentage
achievement of pre-determined goals (covering a period of five
years). Shares that do not vest are forfeited.

Restricted common shares that vest over time have a fixed value
when issued. The value of restricted shares that vest based on
performance will fluctuate with changes in the fair market
value of the common shares until there is a determination as to
their vesting. Over the period of time that these shares may
become vested, there will be charges to earnings based upon
the associated fair value of the shares. As such charges occur,
unamortized value of restricted stock issued will be reduced. To
the extent that restricted shares are forfeited, unamortized
value will also be reduced and the forfeited shares will be
placed in treasury stock.

Changes in common shares issued and treasury shares for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2001 2000

Shares issued

Beginning of year 20,078,972 20,015,561 19,999,463

Exercise of stock options 178,548 4,000 12,622

Restricted stock issued 13,000 45,000

Stock purchase plans 43,395 14,411 3,476

End of year 20,313,915  20,078,972° 20,015,561
Treasury shares

Beginning of year 950,502 950,135 927,651

Exercise of stock options - - 2,517

Restricted stock issued - (1,250} -

Restricted stock forfeiture 2,963 1,617 19,967

Shares repurchased 5,000 - -

End of year 958,465 950,502 950,135

Note 11 - Stock Based Plans

As of December 31, 2002 the Company had issued non-quali-
fied stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s com-
mon stock under two plans, the most recent of which was
adopted in 1998 (the “1998 Plan”). Since the adoption of the
1998 Plan, no options were granted under the other plan.

Non-qualified stock options under the 1998 Plan may be
granted to employees, directors and consultants. No options
have been granted to consultants. Grants under the 1998 Plan,
except for certain non-employee directors whose retainer fees
may be paid in whole or in part via stock options, are deter-
mined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. The option price at which options are to be exercised
may not be less than 100% of the fair market value per share
of the Company's common stock on the date of grant. The
terms for which options are granted are also determined by the
Committee and have generally been for seven and ten years.

As of December 31, 2002, 2,196,163 shares of common stock
were reserved for future issuance under these plans upon the
exercise of stock options. Activity under the plans for each of the
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 was as follows:

Shares subject Weighted average

to options exercise price
December 31, 1999 1,137,034 $ 27.56
Granted 742,141 $ 2094
Exercised (12,622) $ 18.32
Cancelled (593,912) $ 27.46
December 31, 2000 1,272,641 $ 25.72
Granted 869,730 $ 15.40
Exercised (4,000) $ 14.23
Cancelled (414,658) $ 25.49
December 31, 2001 1,723,713 $ 20.59
Granted 345,435 $ 2249
Exercised (178,548) $ 20.52
Cancelled (345,268) $ 2336
December 31, 2002 1,545,332 $ 2042

Additional information regarding stock options outstanding as
of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Range of exercise prices:
Lowest $ 14.23 14.23 15.31
Highest $ 46.50 46.50 46.50
Weighted average remaining life 6.6 years 7.8 years 7.0 years
Options exercisable:
Number of shares 422,950 439,886 334,597
Weighted average exercise price $ 24,15 30.71 30.46



Under the terms of a stock purchase plan (“SPP"), designated
employees and non-employee directors have the opportunity to
purchase shares of the Company's common stock on a pre-tax
basis. Employee participants use a portion of their annual
bonus awards to purchase SPP units. Certain senior manage-
ment personnel are required to pafticipate by using 25% of
their annual bonus awards to purchase SPP units and can elect
participation for up to an additional 25%. Other employee par-
ticipants can elect to use up to 25%. Non-employee directors
may participate by using some or ail of their retainer fees to
purchase SPP units. The Company makes a matching contribu-
tion of one SPP unit for every three units purchased by a par-
ticipant on a voluntary basis. The number of units is determined
by dividing the annual bonus or retainer fee used to purchase
SPP units by the fair market value of a share of the Company's
common stock on the date a participant’s account is credited
with the SPP units. Vesting of units occurs over a period of
three to ten years as chosen by the participant. If a participant’s
employment or service on the Company's Board of Directors
ceases for any reason after three years from the start of the
vesting period, the participant will receive shares of the
Company's common stock equal to the number of associated
units. If employment for an employee participant terminates
within the first three years of the vesting period and depending
on the circumstances related to termination, the employee
could receive cash in lieu of shares that does not take into
account appreciation in value of the shares or the Company’s
matching contribution. If a non-employee director does not
stand for re-election to the Board, he will receive shares of the
Company's common stock for his SPP units regardless of the
vesting period chosen.

Under the terms of the stock unit plan (“SUP"), designated
employees have the opportunity to earn shares of the
Company’'s common stock. Current grants under the plan vest
with three continuous years of service ending June 30, 2003. if
employment of a participant in the plan terminates for any rea-
son before June 30, 2003 all benefits are forfeited.

There are 158,138 SPP and SUP units (including Company
matching units) outstanding as of December 31, 2002. The
units were determined using a weighted average market price
of $20.53 per share. Costs charged to earnings during 2002,
2001 and 2000 related to these plans were $1,456, $824, and
$657, respectively. Costs charged to earnings related to
employee participants include the amount of the deferred
bonus for the year used to purchase SPP units plus a portion of
the value of the Company match SPP units credited to partici-
pants’ accounts. Company match SPP units and SUP units have
a fixed value determined at the time participants accounts are
credited, which value is charged to earnings over a three-year
period, the minimum period over which employee participants
vest in these units. Costs charged to earnings related to non-
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employee directors include the amount of the deferred retainer
fees used to purchase SPP units plus the value of the Company
match SPP units credited to a director's account. These
Company match units have a fixed value that is charged to
earnings over a one-year period.

Note 12 - income Taxes

Pretax earnings {loss) from continuing operations for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were taxed in the
following jurisdictions:

2002 2001 2000
United States 3 (214)  (29,537) 40,750
Foreign 7.030 3,445 7,400

i S 6,816 (26,092} 48,150

Income tax (expense) benefit relating to continuing operations
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
comprised of the following:

Total Federal State Foreign

2002
Current $ 2,087 5,096 (538) (2,471)
Deferred (4,686) (5.580) 958 (64)
$ (2,599) (484) 420 (2,535)

2001
Current $ (4,246) (672) (1,554) (2,020)
Deferred 14,040 9,178 4,677 185
$ 9,7%4 8,506 3,123 (1,835)

2000
Current $(24,124) (16,713) (3,069) (4,342)
Deferred 5,657 4,356 1,322 21)
$(18,467) (12.357) {1,747 (4,363)

The effective income tax rates relating to continuing operations
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 dif-
fered from the applicable federal rate as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Federal rate (35%) 35% (35%)
State income taxes, net 14% 7% (2%)
Expenses permanently
nondeductible for tax purposes {7%) (4%) {1%)
Foreign income taxes 3%
Increase in valuation allowance (16%)
Income tax credits 3% -
Effective income tax rate (38%) 38% (38%)




The tax effects of the principal components creating net
deferred income tax assets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001
were as follows:

2002 2001
Components creating deferred tax assefs:
Expenses not currently deductible (principally
compensation and payroll-related) $ 20,904 26,059
Intangible assets amortization 2,651 140
Basis differences for fixed assets 1,666
Other 443 429
Loss carry forwards 6,461 3,287
Credit carry forwards 744 -
Valuation allowance (1,027) (13}
31,842 29,902
Components creating deferred tax ligbilities:
Deferral of revenues and accounts receivable (3,084) (1,524)
Basis differences for fixed assets - (2,442)
Other (3,813) (3,441)
(6,897) (7,407)
$ 24,945 22,495

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the
Company considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the benefits of the deferred tax assets will not
be achieved. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon several factors, including past and future tax-
able income. Based upon the Company's assessment of the
prospects for achieving the benefits of the deferred tax assets,
the Company has determined that it is more likely than not that
such benefits will be realized.

At December 31, 2002 for state income tax purposes, there are
operating loss carryforwards aggregating approximately $87.0
million expiring in varying amounts from 2005 through 2019,
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Note 13 - Discontinued Operations

In June of 2002 the Company sold the net operating assets of
its Modern Engineering, inc. ("Modern”) subsidiary that oper-
ated in its PM segment. Modern provided technical staffing ser-
vices to the automotive industry. In conjunction with the
implementation of SFAS 144, a pre-tax loss for disposal of these
assets of $1,160 had been recognized. The operations of
Modern were a component of CDi, as that term is defined in
SFAS 144, and accordingly, are reflected as discontinued oper-
ations in the accompanying financial statements.

The earnings from discontinued operations for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 and related net assets as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Earnings:
Revenues $32,674 86,055 108,151
Gross profit $ 5,718 15,817 20,920
Operating and
administrative expenses 5,860 13,927 14,454
Provision for disposal of assets 1,160 - -
(Loss) earnings before income taxes  (1,302) 1,890 6,466
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,829 (796) (2,274)
Earnings from
discontinued operations $ 527 1,094 4,192
Net Assets:
Assets (principally accounts
receivable and deferred
income taxes) $ - 14,840
Liabitities {principally accounts
payable and accrued expenses) - (3,513)
Net assets $ 11,327

Note 14 - Legal Procceedings and Claims

The Company has litigation and other claims pending which
have arisen in the ordinary course of business. There are sub-
stantive defenses and/or insurance and accounting reserves
such that the outcome of these items should not have a mate-
rial adverse effect on the financial condition or results of oper-
ations of the Company.

Note 15 - Retirement Plans

Trusteed contributory and non-contributory defined contribu-
tion retirement plans have been established for the benefit of
eligible employees. Costs of the plans are charged to earnings
and are based on either a formula using a percentage of com-
pensation or an amount determined by the Board of Directors
of the Company. Costs of the plans that are qualified for
income tax purposes are funded. Costs of plans that are not
qualified are not funded. Charges to earnings for these retire-
ment plans for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 were $4,803, $4,099 and $5,771, respectively.

The Company does not provide other post-retirement or post-
employment benefits.




Note 16 - Leases

Offices used for sales, recruiting and administrative functions
and facilities used for in-house engineering, design and drafting
are occupied under numerous leases that expire through 2009.
in addition, there are leases for computers and office equip-
ment. Due to the Plan of Restructure, CDI has entered into sev-
eral ‘non-cancelable sublease arrangements whereby the
Company is now the sublessor. However, if the sublessee
defaults, the Company will remain liable for the lease obligation.

The rental expenses and sublease proceeds for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Rental expense $ 16,466 28,684 26,679
Sublease proceeds 708 339

For periods after December 31, 2002, approximate minimum annual rental payments under non-cancelable leases and inflows
under non-cancelable subleases are presented in the table below. These amounts include accrued lease liabilities of $5,539
included in the liability for restructure as of December 31, 2002.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007  There-after
Future minimum lease payments on
non-cancelable leases ¢ 13,149 11,372 7,883 3,746 1,873 5,627
" Future minimum proceeds to be
received under non-cancelable subleases $ 1,992 1,807 1,494 384 131 16

Note 17 - Operating Segments

The Company's internal reporting structure is based upon type
of services provided and, in the case of certain services having'
similar characteristics, upon management responsibility.

PS provides staffing, managed staffing and functional out-
sourcing services to the technical and technological markets.

PM provides staffing and outsourcing services engaging per-
sonnel who provide engineering, engineering support and
technical services through its specialized divisions.

MRI provides search and recruiting services for the permanent
employment of management personnel. It also provides tem-
porary administrative, clerical and management staffing ser-

. vices through several specialized divisions. .

31

Todays provides temporary administrative, clerical and legal
staffing services.



Operating segment data for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000 follows.

2002 2001 2000
Revenues:
Professional Services $ 622,931 809,549 911,775
Project Management 311,256 352,210 388,020
Management Recruiters 85,901 103,167 136,752
Todays Staffing 149,387 193,666 238,908
$ 1,169,475 1,458,592 1,675,455
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes,
minority interests and cumulative
effect of accounting change
Operating profit (loss):
Professional Services $ 6,880 (3,984) 20,148
Project Management 9,423 (10,957) 12,582
Management Recruiters 6,902 12,746 30,716
Todays Staffing 1,486 2,616 15,153
Corporate (17,990) (23,448) (25,260)
6,701 (23,027) 53,339
Interest {income) expense, net {115) 3,065 5,189
S 6,816 (26,092) 48,150
Depreciation and amortization:
Professional Services $ 13,060 16,214 13,040
Project Management 5,909 2,423 1,849
Management Recruiters 2,705 4,085 3,568
Todays Staffing 1,490 3,401 3,674
Corporate 1,293 1,509 948
. $ 24,457 27,632 23,179
Assets:
Professional Service_s $ 155,650 212,148 272,933
Project Management 89,996 120,032 154,013
Management Recruiters 44,779 47,247 52,029
Todays Staffing 38,934 50,171 62,199
Corporate 103,415 28,134 9,491
Assets of discontinued
operations - 14,840 21,364
$ 432,774 472,572 572,029
Purchases of fixed assets:
Professional Services $ 6,137 9,473 16,809
Project Management 1,698 4,412 7,551
Management Recruiters 1,145 2,200 2,604
Todays Staffing 558 958 1,781
Corporate 606 2,069 1,047
$ 10,144 19,112 29,792

Inter-segment activity is not

significant. Therefore, revenues

reported for each operating segment are substantially all from

external customers.

The Company is domiciled in the United States and its seg-
ments operate primarily in the United States. Revenues and
fixed assets by geographic area for the years ended December

31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Revenues:
United States $ 979,372 1,278,582 1,503,454
United Kingdom,
Canada and other 190,103 180,010 172,001
$ 1,169,475 1,458,592 1,675,455
Fixed assets:
United States $ 23,758 43,318 60,059
United Kingdom,
Canada and other 5,376 6,671 4,741
$ 29,134 49,989 64,800

There was no single customer from whom the Company
derived 10% or more of its consolidated revenues during 2002,

2001 or 2000.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of CDI Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CDI Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for each of the three years in
the three year period ended December 31, 2002. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements we also
have audited the financial statement schedule. These consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule are
the responsibility of management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by man-
agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion. '

fn our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of CDI Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002-and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the
basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets on January 1, 2002.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania /s/ KPMG LLP
February 21, 2003
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Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

In thousands, except per share data)

Years ended December 31,

First
Quarter

Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2002

Revenues

Gross profit

Operating (loss) profit

Interest (income) expense, net

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Cumulative effect of accounting change
Net (loss) earnings

Diluted (loss) earnings per share:
Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Cumulative effect of accounting change
Net (loss) earnings

2001

Revenues

Gross profit

Operating profit {loss)

Interest expense, net

Earnings (loss) from continuihg operations
Discontinued operations

Net earnings (I0ss)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net earnings (loss)

o

313,134
79,324
(4,368)
85
(2,926)
468
(13,968)
(16,426)

{0.15)
0.02
{0.73)
{0.86)

385,074
105,354
6,258
938
3,177
568
3,745

0.17
0.03
0.20

298,415 287,788 270,138 1,169,475
77,826 76,819 70,724 304,793
2,357 (1,165) 9,877 6,701
43 (111) (132) (115)
1,443 (597) 6,162 4,082
(70) 27 102 527

- - - (13,968)

1,373 (570) 6,264 (9.359)

(0.03) 0.21
- 0.03
- 0.7%)

(0.03) . (0.48)

382,239 351,756 329,523 1,458,592
96,875 87,142 77,646 367,017
2,248 (2,496) (29,037} (23,027)
924 867 336 3,065
670 (2,190) (18,361) (16,704)
319 220 (13) 1,094
989 (1,970) (18,374) (15,610)
0.03 (©.11) (0.96) (0.88)
0.02 0.01 - 0.06
0.05 (0.10) (0.96) (0.82)

There were $12.6 million of pre-tax charges (34.1 million in the first quarter and $8.5 million in the third quarter) in 2002 related to the Company's provision for restructure. )

There were $22..0 million of pre-tax charges in the fourth quarter of 2001 related to the Company's provision for restructure,

Not Applicable.
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[tem 10.

Information related to security ownership of certain beneficial
owners and management is omitted herein as the required
information will be included in a definitive proxy statement to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pur-
suant to Regulation 14A no later than 120 days after the close
of the fiscal year.




[tem 11,

Information related to executive compensation is omitted
herein as the required information will be included in a defini-
tive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A no later
than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year.

Iltem 12.

Information related to security ownership of certain beneficial
owners and management is omitted herein as the required
information will be included in a definitive proxy statement to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pur-
suant to Regulation 14A no later than 120 days after the close
of the fiscal year.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31,
2002 for common shares of the Company that may be issued
under the CDI Corp. Non-Qualified Stock Option and Stock
Appreciation Rights Plan and the CD! Corp. 1998 Non-Qualified
Stock Option Plan that were approved by security holders. It
also includes information related to the CDI Corp. Stock
Purchase Plan for Management Employees and Non-Employee
Directors ("SPP"), and the 2000 Stock Unit Plan (“SUP") that
were not approved by security holders. See Note 11 in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further infor-
mation related to these plans.

Number of

securities

remaining

Number of available for

securities to be Weighted  future issuance

issued upon  average exercise under equity

exercise of price of compensation

outstanding outstanding  plans (excluding

options, options, securities

warrants and warrants and reflected in

rights rights column A)

A B C
Equity compensation
plans approved by

security holders 1,545,332 $ 2042 650,831
Equity compensation
plans not approved

by security holders (a) 158,138 $ 20.53 -

Total 1,703,470 $ 2043 650,831
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(a) The number of securities in column A represent units
awarded to participants in the SPP and SUP. Upon vesting, par-
ticipants in the plans are entitled to receive an equal number of
shares of the Company’'s common stock. Shares authorized for
issuance under the SPP are less than the number of units out-
standing under the plan as of December 31, 2002. There is no
stated number of shares authorized for issuance under the SUP,
Units under the SUP have only been granted on one occasion
and it is not expected that additional units will be issued in the
future. The weighted average share price of $20.53 for the SPP
and SUP represents the weighted average market price per
share of the Company's common stock on the days when units
were awarded to participants under the plans.

ftem 13.

Information related to certain relationships and related transac-
tions is omitted herein as the required information will be
included in a definitive proxy statement to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation
14A no later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year.

ltem 14. &

The Company has conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness
of its disclosure controls and procedures under the supervision
of its Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer
within 90 days of the filing date of this annual report on Form
10-K. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s dis-
closure controls and procedures provide reasonable assurance
that information required to be disclosed by the Company in
reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported upon in such
reports within the time periods specified for their filing. It
should be noted that the design of any system of controls is
based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of
future events. A control system, no matter how well designed
and implemented, can provide only reasonable, not absolute
assurance, that the objectives of the control system will be met.

There have been no significant changes in the Company's inter-
nal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.




Item

| Statement Schedules”

15.
orm 8-K

{a) Documents filed as part of this report

Financial statements

The consolidated balance sheets of the Registrant as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the related consolidated
statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, the footnotes thereto and the report of
KPMG LLP, independent auditors, are filed herewith.

Financial statement schedules

Schedule submitted for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000.

Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(b} Registrant did not file @ Form 8-K during the quarter ended
December 31, 2002.

(c) Exhibits

3.a.

10.a.

Articles of incorporation of the Registrant, incorporated
herein by reference to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 (File No. 1-5519).

. Bylaws of the Registrant, incorporated herein by reference

to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2002 (File No. 1-5519).

CDI Corp. Non-Qualified Stock Option and Stock
Appreciation Rights Plan. (Constitutes a management con-
tract or compensatory plan or arrangement.)

. Amended and Restated CD{ Corp. 1998 Non-Qualified

Stock Option Plan. (Constitutes a management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement.)

. Amended and Restated CDI Corp. Stock Purchase Plan for

Management Employees and Non-Employee Directors,
incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No.
1-5519). (Constitutes a ranagement contract or compen-
satory plan or arrangement.)

. CDI Corp. 2000 Stock Unit Plan. (Constitutes a manage-

ment contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.)

. Executive Severance Arrangement Approved by the CDI

Corp. Compensation Committee on September 10, 2002,
incorporated by reference to the Registrant's report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002 (File
No. 1-5519). (Constitutes a management contract or com-
pensatory plan or arrangement.)

. Supplemental Pension Agreement dated April 11, 1978

between CDI Corporation and Walter R. Garrison.
(Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan
or arrangement.)

. Consulting Agreement dated as of April 7, 1997 by and

between Registrant and Walter R. Garrison, incorporated
by reference to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 1997 (File No. 1-5519).
(Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan
or arrangement.)

. Amendment dated as of April 12, 2000 to Consulting

Agreement dated as of April 7, 1997 by and between
Registrant and Walter R. Garrison, incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q for the
guarter ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 1-5519).
(Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan
or arrangement.)
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21,
23.

99.a.

. Employment Agreement dated October 1, 2001, between

Registrant and Roger H. Ballou, incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001. (File No. 1-5519). (Constitutes a man-
agement contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.)

. Note dated March 14, 2002 from Roger Ballou and

Georgeann Ballou to CDI Corporation, incorporated by ref-
erence to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2002 (File No. 1-5519).
(Constitutes @ management contract or compensatory plan
or agreement.)

. Agreement dated March 14, 2002 between Roger Ballou

and Georgeann Ballou and CDI Corporation regarding the
sale of the Ballous’ residence in Washington, D.C., incorpo-
rated by reference 1o the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2002 (File No. 1-5519).
(Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan
or agreement.)

. Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October 14,

2002 between Registrant and Jay G. Stuart. (Constitutes a
management contract or compensatory plan or agreement.)

. Restricted Stock Agreement dated October 14, 2002

between Registrant and Jay G. Stuart. (Constitutes a manage-
ment contract or compensatory plan or agreement.)

. Employment Agreement effective January 1, 1998 by and

between Registrant and Joseph R. Seiders, incorporated
herein by reference to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q
for the guarter ended March 31, 1998 (File No. 1-5519).
(Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan
or arrangement.)

. Restricted Stock Agreement dated as of October 25, 1999

between Registrant and Gregory L. Cowan, incorporated
herein by reference to Registrant’s report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1999 (File No. 1-5519).
(Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan
or arrangement.)

. Agreement between Registrant and Gregory L. Cowan

effective November 15, 2002 regarding his severance
agreement. (Constitutes a management contract or com-
pensatory plan or arrangement.)

. Consulting and Non-Competition Agreement and Release

and Waiver of Claims dated June 4, 2001 by and between
the Registrant and Brian J. Bohling, incorporated by refer-
ence to the Registrant’s report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 1-5519). (Constitutes a man-
agement contract or compensatory plan or agreement.)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consents of experts and counsel.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, Pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes - Oxley Act of 2002,

. Certification of Chief Executive Officer, Pursuant to 18

U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes - Oxley Act of 2002.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CDI Corp.

By: /s/ Roger H. Ballou
President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 26, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following per-
sons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ Roger H. Ballou By: /s/ Michael J. Emmi By: /s/ Alan B. Miller
Roger H. Ballou Michael J. Emmi Alan B. Miller
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Executive Officer and Director Date: March 24, 2003 Date: March 21, 2003
(DP,;:;‘F;/?;ri);]e;?wzeog;mer> By: /s/ Walter R. Garrison By: /s/ Barton J. Winokur
’ Walter R. Garrison Barton J. Winokur
By: /s/ Jay G. Stuart Director Director
Jay G. Stuart Date: March 23, 2003 Date: March 25, 2003

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Date: March 26, 2003

By: /s/ Kay Hahn Harreli
Kay Hahn Harrell
Director
Date: March 25, 2003

By: /s/ Lawrence C. Karlson
Lawrence C. Karlson
Director
Date: March 24, 2003

By: /s/ Waiter E. Blankley
Walter E. Blankley
Director
Date: March 24, 2003
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[, Roger H. Ballou, certify that:
. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CDI Corp.;

. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a mate-
rial fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the
filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on
our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s abil-
ity to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 26, 2003 By: /s/ Roger H. Ballou
Roger H. Ballou
President and Chief Executive Officer
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I, Jay G. Stuart, certify that:

. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CDI Corp.;

. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a mate-
rial fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present
in ali material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 150-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this annual report is being prepared,

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the
filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrels and procedures based on
our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s abil-
ity to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and

. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 26, 2003 By: /s/ Jay G. Stuart
Jay G. Stuart
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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"Schedule Il

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables)

Years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Uncollectible

Balance at Additions receivables
beginning charged to written off, Balance at
of year earnings net of recoveries end of year
December 31, 2002 $ 8,162,000 3,246,000 3,725,000 7,683,000
December 31, 2001 $ 3,480,000 9,436,000 4,754,000 8,162,000
December 31, 2000 $ 4,203,000 3,863,000 4,586,000 3,480,000
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Exhibit 99.a.
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secticn 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CDI Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2002 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of
the Company hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:
1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and 2) the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respect, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report.

Dated: March 26, 2003 By: /s/ Roger H. Ballou
Roger H. Ballou
President and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to CDi Corp. and will be retained by
CDI Corp. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Exhibit 99.b.
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CDI Corp. (the "Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2002 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of
the Company hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:
1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and 2) the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respect, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report.

Dated: March 26, 2003 By: /s/ Jay G. Stuart
Jay G. Stuart .
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to CDI Corp. and will be retained by
CDI Corp. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon reguest.
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